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» General Information
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» Financial Highlights
MBRE

For the year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+—-BLEE

2008 2007
—EEN\F ZEEEF
Audited Audited
BE % EEZ Change
HK$’000 HK$'000 #E)
FHT FHT %
Revenue e 5,669,274 6,493,394 -12.7
Gross profit EF 695,974 1,105,781 -37.1
Profit for the year PNl 261,135 702,029 -62.8
. EPS HRAF
8 — Basic — ER HK$0.55i% 7T HK$1.49/8 ¢ -63.1
£ — Diluted — B8 HK$0.557% T HK$1.4678 7T -62.3
g
g DPS R E
g — Interim — rhHj HK$0.25: 7T HK$0.25/%8 7T
04 — Final — K HK$0.01i# 5T HK$0.30/5 7T
Total: #agt HK$0.26i% T HK$0.55/8 7T -52.7

Basic earnings and dividends per share (HK cents)
BREREFRKRE (GBL)
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Financial Highlights (continued)

MBRHE (E)

Analysis of EBITDA, gross, operating and net profit margins (%)
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Financial Highlights (continued)

MBRHE (E)

Turnover by geographical segments Turnover by business segments
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» The Chairman’s Statement
FTEHRETE

2008 was a very special year for Truly. In this 30th anniversary we become a
flat panel display solution provider who is complete with all commercial
LCD panel production lines. They are the monochrome twisted-nematic (TN)
and super twisted-nematic (MSTN); the colour super twisted-nematic (CSTN)
and thin film transistor (TFT) LCDs. These core display technologies are
embraced with massive production capabilities of resistive and capacitive
touch screen, compact camera module, backlight unit, HDI and flexible
PCB. Any portable consumer electronic device is made with at least 3 of the
above critical components. But it is not easy for Truly to come to the front
edge of the industry. There is a dear price to be pre-paid.

Over the last two years our organization was in the state of metamorphosis.
From an incomplete panel maker with immature peripheral self-sufficiency
Truly emerges as it is today through dedicated cash investment in its first
TFT panel production and an advanced ODF-CSTN production line. The total
investment is gigantic; it was more than three times our 2007 earnings. The
impact to our account books is further rocked by 12.7% reduction of
revenue partly due to the sharp erosion of product average selling price
(ASP) at the last quarter of 2008. Therefore our 2008 net earning was
down to HK$261 million, a big drop from 2007's HK$702 million.

But the focal issue remains: Is Truly on the right direction with right
strategy?

Our goal is to become the world’s largest small size LCD solution providers
with full range of technologies. We may not yet be the largest but we surely
are complete in know-how.

Our strategy is to capture telecommunication, industrial, automotive and
medical applications, to venture out from the firm market base in China we
created since 1986 to the rest of the world through our Hong Kong and
China regional headquarters, UK, Singapore, Korea and US branch offices.
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The Chairman’s Statement (continued)
FTRBEE (&)

I do not accuse the economic downturn; it is a difficulty for an entrepreneur
to conquer. This is an unprecedented event in terms of its magnitude. | am
not shaken in leading Truly to become what it deserves to be. | admit that
the timetable would be stretched, as only revenue and profit generating
business can get us there. And the rest of the world will not provide enough
marketplaces in the near term for Truly to diversify into. For these markets
we have to be patient but not without action. In low tide it is easier to get
to the shores. We dispatch more frequently sales and engineering experts
to visit our clients in automotive, industrial and medical sectors to support
their delayed but ongoing projects. Our timely helping hands are very much
welcome by these manpower constrained product planning and R&D
departments.

We are holding our handset-dependant Chinese market securely as
important buoyancy to await the world business to resume normal. Our
sales within and export from China were at the bottom in the 4th quarter
of 2008. As of March 2009 our revenue gained significant recovery. We
remain cautious at this point as the re-stocking led rally might mislead one
to believe Chinese handset market is coming back soon and strong.
However, we opt that the handset market will have a steady and sustainable
upward movement towards third quarter of 2009 steamed by the joint
promotion efforts of all three 3G licensed Chinese telecom operators who
now have a common goal.

| want to express my appreciation to the banks for supporting us to swiftly
deal with technical accounting issue raised by our auditors. | thank the
people of Truly to have braved the headwind with dedication and
enthusiasm.

Lam Wai Wah, Steven
Chairman

Hong Kong, 8 April 2009
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» Management Discussion and Analysis
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Business review

Sales for the fourth quarter of the year were exceptionally bad with an over
30% drop quarter-on-quarter resulting in an overall decrease of about
12.7% in revenue for the full year period which was down to around
HK$5.67 billion (2007: HK$6.49 billion). Audited profit for the year was
about HK$261 million which was approximately 62.8% less than the last
corresponding period in 2007 (HK$702 million). The reasons were mainly
because of the high depreciation charges of the new TFT panel production
line recorded during the year, the impairment loss on inventory due to
reduced selling price and the appreciation of Renminbi (RMB) resulting in
higher production overheads. Gross profit margin was down significantly
from 17.0% to 12.3%. Net profit margin was also decreased to 4.6% from
10.8% accordingly.

The deep downturn in the market-place during the fourth quarter of 2008
was a bad signal for most of the manufacturers who found themselves
difficult to turnaround immediately. Even with quick response like us to this
adverse market change, there were only a limited number of measures to
make a remedy. With sharp diminishing in sales orders in November and the
following months, we managed to reduce the factory overheads and the
related operating expenses by reducing 20% salaries across-the-board and
cutting headcounts in December so as to reduce the selling prices to keep
our products as competitive as before. In the medium to long run, we are
able to secure our market share especially in the China handset display
market. However, the effect of an aggressive reduction in selling prices had
resulted in an impairment loss on inventory in particular finished goods as
at the financial year end when the outcome was subsequently reflected in
the management accounts of January and February, 2009. The provision
amounting to almost HK$40 million had on one hand affected the gross
profit margin of 2008 but on the other hand ensured a true and fair
performance of the subsequent quarters including first quarter of 2009.

Exceptionally high depreciation charges of the new TFT-panel production
facilities were still the most significant factor of squeezing the gross profit
margin of the Group. This key issue was especially important during the
year and would be the case in the next one or two years before its
productivity and efficiency are ramped up to the optimal level and its
targeted niche market is ready. The upcoming strategy is still relying on the
fully-automated characteristic of the advanced facilities by enhancing
production yields and reducing labour costs.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

EEENRR DN ()

The rapid appreciation of RMB during the first half year of 2008 had no
doubt been a negative stimulus to all the production costs incurred in our
China factory including but not limited to raw material purchases from the
domestic suppliers, labour and energy costs and other major manufacturing
overheads for the whole year. This unfavourable situation is however
expected to lessen in 2009 when there will be some changes in the China’s
monetary policy to cater for the anticipated economic problems.

Segmental information

Business segments

For management purposes, the Group is currently organised into two
operating divisions LCD products and electronic consumer products. These
divisions are the basis on which the Group reports its primary segment
information.

Principal activities are as follows:

manufacture and distribution of LCD
products

manufacture and distribution of
electronic consumer products

LCD products —

Electronic consumer —
products
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
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Segment information about these businesses is presented below:

For the year ended 31 December 2008

WEEK 2D RERZ5IMT

BE_FFT/N\F+ZRA=1+—HLEE

Electronic

consumer
LCD products products Eliminations  Consolidated

B Bf
BTREM HEER ESE | e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FTHET THET FHET

REVENUE Wz

External sales SMEH 5,555,605 113,669 — 5,669,274
Inter-segment sales HIEREEE — 171,317 (171,317) —
5,555,605 284,986 (171,317) 5,669,274

Inter-segment sales are charged at prevailing market rates.

DEEHEETRERN TSN R -

Electronic

consumer
LCD products products Consolidated

& EF
BREEm HEEM =)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FiET FERT T#ERT

RESULT ES:

Segment result DERELE 350,062 1,303 351,365
Unallocated corporate income Fval R A/NCIE PN 76,496
Unallocated corporate expenses PN P A/NCTE= 3= (21,788)
Finance costs B%ER (67,015)
Profit before tax R 5 A ) 339,058
Income tax expense A8 Y (77,923)
Profit for the year IR A 261,135
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 HEZZZ+LF+A=+—RHLFE

Electronic
consumer
LCD products products Consolidated
B & BF
BTRSEm JHEE M@ o)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FET FHET
REVENUE I &=
External sales SNEH 6,362,402 130,992 6,493,394
RESULT E4
Segment result DREE 814,674 14,444 829,118
o)
S Unallocated corporate income ROBLZ RRIWA 73,939
é Unallocated corporate expenses PN WPA/NCIE - (19,468)
< Share of loss of an associate I — KBt E A RIER — (445) (445)
§ Finance costs B E A (57,821)
- Profit before tax 4 B BE 825,323
12 Income tax expense FTiS R = (123,294)
Profit for the year REE %A 702,029
Geographical segments WEsE

The Group’s manufacturing operation is located in the PRC. The sales and ~ ZR&EE Z RSB N FE - $HE RMISHERE
marketing functions are located at all reportable segments as listed below. (BN TXFA2F 2MBRI 2K D Hi
B .

REBEZREFPWEI T ZWEIAT

The revenue of the Group, analysed by location of customers, is as follows:

Truly International Holdings Limited

Revenue by geographical segments

RitESEE D 2R
2008 2007
—EENF ZETLF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FHET
PRC m 4,507,916 5,162,994
South Korea [EaEE 414,004 595,018
Japan HAR 109,410 115,532
Hong Kong &% 268,661 178,636
Europe M 179,920 282,110
Others Hib 189,363 159,104
5,669,274 6,493,394




Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

EEENRR DN (&)

Outlook

The Chinese telecom industry is migrating from GSM to TD-SCDMA(3G)
platform. This provides enormous opportunities for the telecom hardware
chain suppliers from network infrastructure & equipment, handset terminal
to parts and components.

The high-speed high-volume audio-video wireless market will cause a
dramatic change among new generations of Chinese telecom users when
the nation-wide 3G network will be matted to connect coastal cities to
inland mountain villages, allowing university students to video-con their
farming grandparents, growers to monitor their produce conditions in
remote valleys 24 hours a day, 7 days a week. This process takes time to
progress and mature in a steady pace.

Truly expects to experience a modest sales growth in first half of 2009
mainly due to re-stocking and sell through of GSM handsets. Towards
second half it is anticipated that 3G handsets will come into play. We
should be cautious that during this transition of wireless technology in the
middle of the year, there might be a withdrawal in demand of GSM
handsets before the 3G handset sales start to pick up for a relatively short
period of time; but the plunge could be quite deep.

Despite weak global demand prevails, the export of our products recovered
some lost ground for the past few months and we budget a level sales
performance for this year.

Financial analysis

Investment, assets and liabilities

During the year, the Group acquired plant and machinery amounting to
HK$1,183 million and properties under development amounting to HK$163
million for the purpose of expanding its manufacturing capacity in the
China factory campus.

Total assets were increased by approximately 11% to HK$6,560 million
which comprised HK$2,163 million of current assets, HK$4,214 million of
property, plant and equipment and HK$183 million of other long-term
assets. Total liabilities were about HK$3,314 million, of which HK$3,164
million were current liabilities and HK$150 million were long term liabilities.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

EEENRR DN ()

As at 31 December 2008 and for the year then ended, the Group had
breached certain of the banks’ financial covenants. Among others, based
on the unaudited consolidated management accounts of the Group, the
current ratio as at 31 December 2008 was less than one which was
generally below the major banks’ pre-set limit resulting in a non-
compliance. The application of the Hong Kong Accounting Standard 1 to
reclassify the long-term portion of those bank loans with covenants
breached to current liabilities was however considered by the management
not practicable as it was not expected that the said covenants would be
breached before the year end date as the accounts were prepared and
finalized subsequently. A proforma unaudited condensed consolidated
balance sheet was therefore prepared for the purpose of obtaining the
waivers from those major banks with financial covenants breached which
were thereafter accepted and waivers granted unconditionally before the
approval of the annual results. The proforma balance sheet was presented
for the special reference purpose as if the waivers were granted by the
banks by 31 December 2008.

Liquidity and financial resources
Revenue for the year were decreased by 12.7%. Profit for the year and
earnings per share were decreased by 62.8% and 63.1% respectively.

As at 31 December 2008, the outstanding bank borrowings, net of cash
and bank balances, were about HK$1,425 million (2007: HK$833 million).
These borrowings bear interest at prevailing market rate and their maturity
profiles are shown in the notes to the financial statements.

The financial position of the Group is healthy and ready for future capital
expansion while keeping a sufficiently high level of cash and bank balances
(HK$688 million at 31 December 2008) together with adequate unutilised
banking facilities. The gearing ratio based on total interest bearing debts,
net of cash and bank balances was approximately 44%.

Capital expenditure of around HK$120 million for the next three years in
respect of acquisitions of property, plant and equipment was authorized but
not contracted for. Their expected sources of funding will be principally
from internal reserves.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
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General

During the year, the Company issued a total of 135,000 ordinary shares of
HK$0.1 each under the share option scheme at HK$2.196 per share for an
aggregate consideration of HK$296,460. The new shares rank pari passu
with the existing shares in all respects and the issued share capital of the
Company was accordingly increased to HK$47,287,953 at 31 December
2008.

The state of the Group's current order books is very good.

Except for investments in subsidiaries, an associate (being reclassified as a
subsidiary during the year) and the long term investment of a Japanese
corporation, neither the Group nor the Company had held any other
material investments during the year.

Additions to fixed assets mainly in properties under development and plant
and machinery were approximately HK$1,350 million. There were no
material disposals of fixed assets during the year. As at 31 December 2008,
the Group had no pledge or mortgage on its fixed assets.

More than 10,000 workers and staff are currently employed in our Shan
Wei factory in China and less than 80 personnel in the Group’s Hong Kong
office. Total staff costs for the year were approximately HK$413 million.

The Group had no material contingent liabilities at the balance sheet date
and exposure to fluctuations in exchange rates will be hedged, if any.

Other information

Dividends

The directors recommend the payment of a final dividend for the year
ended 31 December 2008 of 1 HK cent per share (2007: 30 HK cents) to
shareholders whose names appear on the Register of Members on 15 May
2009 which, together with the interim dividend of 25 HK cents per share
(2007: 25 HK cents) paid in October, 2008, makes a total dividend for the
year of 26 HK cents per share (2007: 55 HK cents). It is expected that the
final dividend payments will be made to shareholders on 18 June 2009.

The total dividend payout ratio for the year was about 47 %.

—REE

FA - AREIREBEERER S ATR219%6E
JUAR FEE7T135000 X B IR EE0 B T 2 E il

%v%ﬁ%ﬁmwm%ﬁoﬁg%%ﬁﬁﬁﬁ

BOESTEHZERSESN KA -

TENE+-A=+—B 2D %] k$lﬁ%m

47,287,953/ 7T °

REBRE ZTEREFFIER -

BHEBAR R —HABEQR (ENFRENR
BRAMBAR)KRE  URE-—RBARAZ
RHEREN  AEBRARRHERFARE
ERAEMEREKE -

FR BTEERE(NEEDVE BERH#
2AF) 451,350,0000008 7T - FARFES K
HEBRTEE R-ZZEENF+_A=+—
A AEBVEBEETEELMRET -

REFBIB100008 TAREEZ R AREENM
RERIIEZ TR ARTRE0EZE T XHE
RASEEEEMERE - AFEEBTHRKRANA
413,000,000/ 7T °

AEEREEAHETMNEARREE  1F
FER G ENELS - BIHEITE M -

H &

RE
EERSREE T )\ F+-A=+—HLt
FEAR-_ZEZAFHA+EELZIRELT
ZBREIRMAFRABIW(ZBZLF - 3081)
ZREBE EREN-_ZENETARNZ
FHIR S EREWN(ZEZEF  2551)
HE AEEZRELEAER6HEIL(ZZ
THF 55 c HHABMBEBR-_ZT
NENABTN\BBEEIRA

FRZHBIRB LR BAT%

—BENEEH

DR ¢

FERER

=

f




Annual Report 2008

o

Truly International Holdings Limited

Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

EEENRR DN ()

Customers and suppliers

In the year under review, sales to the five largest customers and purchases
from the five largest suppliers accounted for less than 30% of the total
sales and purchases of the Group respectively.

As at 31 December 2008, none of the directors, their associates, or any
shareholders which to the knowledge of the directors owned more than 5%
of the Company’s issued share capital had any beneficial interests in the
Group’s five largest customers and/or five largest suppliers mentioned in the
preceding paragraph.

Directors and senior management
Biographical details of the directors of the Company and senior
management of the Group are set out as follows:

Mr. Lam Wai Wah, Steven, aged 56, is the Chairman and Managing Director
of the Company. He is the founder of the Group and has over 32 years of
experience in the electronics industry. He is primarily responsible for the
formulation of the Group’s overall strategic planning and business
development.

Mr. Wong Pong Chun, James, aged 50, is an Executive Director of the
Company and the Chief Operating Officer of the Group. He is responsible
for the Group's operations in respect of internal controls and risk
management, investors’ relationship and external affairs. He joined the
Group in 1987.

Mr. Cheung Tat Sang, James, aged 53, is an Executive Director of the
Company. He is responsible for the sales of the Group’s LCD products and
other semiconductor components. Prior to joining the Group in 1989, he
had been the sales managers of a number of electronics companies for over
10 years.

Mr. Li Jian Hua, aged 45, is the Head of the Group’s LCD Production Division
and an Executive Director of the Company. Mr. Li graduated from the Jilin
University of Technology and Engineering Management in 1987 and joined
the group in 1989. Prior to joining the Group, he worked in a multinational
motor car manufacturer in Guangzhou City, the PRC for almost two years.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
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Mr. Chung Kam Kwong, aged 51, is an independent Non-executive Director
of the Company and the Chairman of the Group’s Audit, Remuneration and
Nomination Committees. He is a practising Certified Public Accountant in
Hong Kong and is members of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the Australian Society of Certified Practising Accountants
and a council member of the Macau Society of Certified Practising
Accountants. Mr. Chung has extensive experience in accounting and
financial management and has been the independent Non-executive
Director, management consultant and Company Secretary of a number of
listed companies in Hong Kong.

Mr. Ip Cho Ting, Spencer, aged 50, is an independent Non-executive
Director and members of the Group’s Audit, Remuneration and Nomination
Committees. He is the holder of a Bachelor of Science degree from the
University of Wisconsin, Green Bay, U.S.A. Mr. Ip is a member of the
Institute of Financial Planner of Hong Kong and is the Senior Financial
Advisor of a professional insurance company in Hong Kong.

Mr. Heung Kai Sing, aged 60, is an independent Non-executive Director and
members of the Group’s Audit, Remuneration and Nomination Committees.
He has experience in textile industry.

Mr. Ng Sui Wa, Thomas, aged 46, is the Group’s Chief Financial Officer and
the Finance Director of Truly Semiconductors Limited. He graduated from
the University of Hong Kong and is a fellow member of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants. Mr. Ng joined the Group in 1996 and has
over 21 years of experiences for working in an international accounting firm
and in the commercial and industrial sectors.

By Order of the Board
Lam Wai Wah, Steven
Chairman

Hong Kong, 8 April 2009
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» Directors’ Report

EEEWMES

The directors present their annual report and the audited financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2008.

Principal activities

The Company acts as an investment holding company. Its subsidiaries are
principally engaged in the manufacture and sale of liquid crystal display
products and electronic consumer products including calculators, electric
toothbrush and electronic components.

Results and appropriations

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2008 are set out
in the consolidated income statement on page 38.

An interim dividend of 25 HK cents per share, amounting to
HK$118,220,000, was paid to the shareholders during the year.

The directors now recommend the payment of a final dividend of 1 HK cent
per share to the shareholders of the Company whose names appear on the
register of members on 15 May 2009, amounting to HK$4,729,000, and
the retention of the remaining profit of HK$138,186,000 for the year.

Property, plant and equipment

During the year, the Group acquired plant and machinery and properties
under development amounting to HK$1,183,000,000 and HK$163,000,000
respectively for the purpose of expanding its manufacturing capacity in
Shan Wei City, Guangdong Province in the People’s Republic of China.

Details of these and other movements in the property, plant and equipment
of the Group during the year are set out in note 16 to the financial
statements.

Share capital

Details of movements during the year in the issued share capital of the
Company are set out in note 29 to the financial statements.
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Directors’ Report (continued)
EXEREE (B)

Distributable reserves of the Company

The Company’s reserves available for distribution to shareholders as at 31
December 2008 were as follows:

AT 2 7k

RZZZENF+_A=+—8  XREA DIk
FTRRZFEHWT :

2008 2007

—EENF ZEELF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET

Share premium A% 17 5 (8 319,913 319,630
Special reserve RIS 17,492 17,409
Retained earnings REB A 31,448 21,257
368,853 358,296

Under the applicable laws of the Cayman Islands, the share premium of the
Company is available for distributions or paying dividends to shareholders
subject to the provisions of its Memorandum or Articles of Association and
provided that immediate following the distribution or paying dividend the
Company is able to pay its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of
business.

The special reserve of the Company represents the difference between the
net book values of the underlying assets of the Company’s subsidiaries
acquired at the date on which the shares of these companies were acquired

by the Company, and the nominal amount of the Company’s shares issued
for the acquisitions.

RIEMERE ZBRZED - NARZBNEE
AR A BB IR M AN B 2 RS AR R A
MRS - R EREE D IR
PRE% - ARBIAANBEEEBBIER L
HIfEIE -

RRB 2 RIREE TR A D B U s B
REZBRMEAZSEREB AR ZABEER
EFEERNRRRKEMET 2 ROEERE
2 Z% o

MERERIA & —ZTENFFR

=

f




Annual Report 2008

N
o

Truly International Holdings Limited

Directors’ Report (continued)

EEEHREE (A

Directors

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive directors:
Lam Wai Wah, Steven

Wong Pong Chun, James
Cheung Tat Sang, James
Li Jian Hua

Independent non-executive directors:
Chung Kam Kwong

Heung Kai Sing
Ip Cho Ting, Spencer

In accordance with Articles 100 and 120 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, Cheung Tat Sang, James, Li Jian Hua and Chung Kam Kwong
retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

The independent non-executive directors are subject to retirement by
rotation in accordance with the above articles.

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming Annual General
Meeting has a service contract with the Company or its subsidiaries which
is not determinable by the Group within one year without payment of
compensation (other than statutory compensation).

Directors’ interests in contracts

No contracts of significance to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries
was a party and in which a director of the Company had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year.
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Directors’ Report (continued)

EEEHREE (A

EEZRNKEBRROER

Directors’ interests in shares and underlying
shares

At 31 December 2008, the interests of the directors and their associates in 1R IE AN A 78 BB 3% 5 I B & 1601 52 352 1 AT (R
the shares and underlying shares of the Company and its associated 72 & MAA#E - ARBAET AR ESETT
corporations, as recorded in the register maintained by the Company #HHX HMWIZEFANBHNE ARG LEEH
pursuant to Section 352 of the Securities and Futures Ordinance, or as &XZFAERAE  RZZETZN\F+ZA=+
otherwise notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong —H ' EEREBEAEE 2 A Q7 R EEH
Limited pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors  JAB 2 I8 7 KRB DT

of Listed Companies, were as follows:

FRE

BEmlEAA

Long positions )
(@) Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each of the Company @ AoEIBREEOCIEBTZEZER
Percentage of the p»
Number of issued issued share ﬁ
ordinary shares capital of the E?w
Name of director Capacity held Company T*ilw
RS ARE: Sy EELRZE
EEER 5t BERME BORKES L 2
u=s
Lam Wai Wah, Steven Beneficial owner 207,072,000 43.79 T
Mg EREAA -
Held by spouse (note 1) 13,608,000 2.88 }ﬁ
M BEE (Ma1)
220,680,000 46.67
Wong Pong Chun, James Beneficial owner 6,450,000 1.37
=HE BEREBA
Held by spouse (nhote 2) 300,000 0.06
M BE (Mi2)
6,750,000 1.43
Cheung Tat Sang, James Beneficial owner 1,554,000 0.33
RES BB A
Li Jian Hua Beneficial owner 1,680,000 0.36




Directors’ Report (continued)
EXEREE (B)

(b) Share options (b) BERE
Number of Number of
Name of director Capacity options held underlying shares
EEHR g1 FrEzBRERE HERMEE
Lam Wai Wah, Steven Beneficial owner — —
MR EE BB A
Wong Pong Chun, James Beneficial owner 8,900,000 8,900,000
=& EmEAA
Cheung Tat Sang, James Beneficial owner 9,300,000 9,300,000
RIEAE ExmEAA
Li Jian Hua Beneficial owner 4,150,000 4,150,000
FEE BB A
® Held by spouse (nhote 3) 4,400,000 4,400,000
o NN
o HERBEE (M1:3)
o
E 26,750,000 26,750,000
s
>
=
2 Notes: K
22 1 Lam Wai Wah, Steven is deemed to be interested in 13,608,000 ordinary 1. MIEZE R B HEA 13,608,000 B8 i1 2 A7
- shares of the Company, being the interests held beneficially by his spouse, BERGE BB AR A AR -
2 Chung King Yee, Cecilia.
IS .
5 2. Wong Pong Chun, James is deemed to be interested in 300,000 ordinary 2. = B 18 B H 300,000 % i H A2 1532
é shares of the Company, being the interests held beneficially by his spouse, BB R B2 AN A AR e o
] Lai Ching Mui, Stella.
[e)
r_I“ 3 Li Jian Hua is deemed to be interested in 4,400,000 share options of the 3 FREEWE A 4,400,000 (7 H1 2B E
5 Company, being the interests held beneficially by his spouse, Guo Yu Yan. FERE T2 AN ABREE S -
E Other than as disclosed above, none of the directors nor their associates  BrR EXFTHEZEEN RZZTZENF+ A=+
= had any interests or short positions in any shares and underlying shares of —H @ S EFsEBE ABERE AR QT HE
=

the Company or any of its associated corporations as at 31 December 2008.  (E{AI #A 5 E @ 2 (E {1 B 10 M ARRI R (5 2 A ] 48
makRE o




Directors’ Report (continued)
EXEREE (B)

Share options BRE

Particulars of the Company’s share option schemes are set out in note 35to A AR B ERE B 2 F B SR M HREM
the financial statements. FFEE351F ©

The following table discloses movements in the Company’s share options N RIFEFEAR QA 2 BRENF N2 &
during the year:

Number of Number of

options Exercised options

outstanding at during outstanding at

Option type beginning of year year end of year

REDERITE RELERITE

BB R BREHE FRITHE BREHE
Category 1: Directors P
ERE RS i
Lam Wai Wah, Steven 2001 — — — @
INEE:S |f4|w
23

Wong Pong Chun, James 2001 — — —
=L 2003 4,400,000 — 4,400,000 E
2006 4,500,000 — 4,500,000 %
g
Cheung Tat Sang, James 2001 400,000 — 400,000 ﬁ
RIEA 2003 4,400,000 — 4,400,000 N

2006 4,500,000 — 4,500,000

Li Jian Hua (Note) 2003 8,550,000 — 8,550,000

FEE (HiT)
26,750,000 — 26,750,000

Note: Li Jian Hua is deemed to be interested in 4,400,000 2003 shares options, being the [zt : F2ZE 18 BHEH 4,400,000 17 i 2 I8 28 & 7
interests held beneficially by his spouse, Guo Yu Yan. Enlfil —TE=FHERIERE -

Category 2: Substantial shareholder F-E FERR
Other than the share options previously held by Lam Wai Wah, Steven, no  BRHEIMEFEBERE 2 BEIESN - AR A]HE
share option has been granted to other substantial shareholders. MHE M 2R T EARE -




Directors’ Report (continued)

EEEHREE (A

Number of Number of

options options

outstanding at Exercised outstanding at

Option type beginning of year during year end of year

REDERITHE RELKERITER

B R BREHAE FRITE REHHE

Category 3: Employees 2001 140,000 (135,000) 5,000
F=8: EE 2003 25,625,000 — 25,625,000
2006 4,500,000 — 4,500,000

30,265,000 (135,000) 30,130,000

The weighted average closing price of the Company’s shares immediately — Z4~2 BIIR {9 pA E B AR 1T (0 B HA A 2 AN T

2 before the dates on which the options were exercised was HK$6.88. B T{E RGBT °

o

H

v . [= ==} Y P2 'A—|

= Arrangement to acquire shares or debentures BERGHEHF 2T 5

< Other than the share option schemes disclosed above, at no time during i Filt 4% 88 2 B RR AT B0 + AN A Ak E AT (A
24

the year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any B RFIRFAWES T EMTH - BEARQ
arrangements to enable the directors of the Company to acquire benefits &2 Z = 1] F B UHE AR B s E A H AbE A E
by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or  #8 Z f& {7 Sl & 5 M 15 F & -

any other body corporate.
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Directors’ Report (continued)

EEEHREE (A

Substantial shareholders

As at 31 December 2008, the register of substantial shareholders
maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance shows that other than the interests disclosed above in
respect of Lam Wai Wah, Steven, the following shareholders had notified
the Company of relevant interests in the issued share capital of the
Company.

Long positions
Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each of the Company

FERR

B EXIEESENEERA 2RI - BRI
RRRERFS LSRG EIBIEMREZ
FERRECMAEE  BE_ZZT/N\F+=
A=+—H ' THREEAEAQFERAR
RIZBBITRARHE 2 BHEE -

S}
AR EGREECETZEER

Percentage

Number of of the issued

issued ordinary share capital

Name of shareholder Capacity shares held of the Company

iz e®#T (MEERRARZEHT

REHEA 14 LTERHAE REABDL

%

Chan Kin Sun (nhote) Beneficial owner 28,900,000 6.11
PR 2 (M at) EmliB A

Held by spouse 9,856,000 2.08
HECERFE

38,756,000 8.19

Chan Lai Lan Beneficial owner 25,896,000 5.48
PRERE EnlEE A

Note: Chan Kin Sun and his spouse, Cheng Kwan Ying, Jennifer, are deemed to be
interested in 38,756,000 shares of the Company.

Other than as disclosed above, the Company has not been notified of any
other relevant interests or short positions in the issued share capital of the
Company as at 31 December 2008.
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Directors’ Report (continued)

EEEHREE (A

Emolument policy

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up by the
Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit, qualifications and
competence.

The emoluments of the directors of the Company are decided by the
Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Company’s operating
results, individual performance and comparable market statistics.

The Company has adopted share option schemes as an incentive to
directors and eligible employees, details of the schemes are set out in note
35 to the financial statements.
Pre-emptive rights
There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Articles

of Association, or the laws of Cayman Islands, which would oblige the
Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

Purchases, sales or redemption of listed
securities

There was no purchase, sale or redemption of the Company’s listed
securities by the Company or any of its subsidiaries during the year.

Model code

None of the Directors of the Company is aware of information that would
reasonably indicate that the Company was not in the year under review in
compliance with the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 to the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited.
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Directors’ Report (continued)
EXEREE (B)

Audit committee

The Company has an Audit Committee which was established in
accordance with the code provisions of the Corporate Governance Code
(the "Code") for the purposes of reviewing and providing supervision over
the Group’s financial reporting matters and internal controls. The annual
results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2008 has been
reviewed by the Audit Committee which comprises all the three
independent non-executive directors namely Mr. Chung Kam Kwong (being
the Chairman), Mr. Ip Cho Ting, Spencer and Mr. Heung Kai Sing, and Mr.
Wong Pong Chun, James, an executive director, as members. They meet at
least four times a year.

The Group has received, from each of the independent non-executive
directors, an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all of the independent non-
executive directors are independent.

Remuneration and nomination committees

The Company has a Remuneration Committee and a Nomination
Committee respectively which were established in accordance with the
relevant requirements of the Code. The two Committees are chaired by Mr.
Chung Kam Kwong, an independent non-executive director and comprise
three other members, namely Mr. Ip Cho Ting, Spencer and Mr. Heung Kai
Sing, being independent non-executive directors and Mr. Wong Pong Chun,
James, an executive director of the Company.

Corporate governance

The Board considers that good corporate governance of the Company is
essential to safeguarding the interests of the shareholders and enhancing
the performance of the Group. The Board is committed to maintain and
ensure high standards of corporate governance. The Company has
complied with all the applicable code provisions set out in the Code on
Corporate Governance Practices in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules
throughout the year ended 31 December 2008, except for a major
deviation as below:

o Code Provision A.2.1 — The roles of the Chairman and the Chief
Executive are not separated and are performed by the same
individual, Mr. Lam Wai Wah, Steven. The Board will meet regularly
to consider major matters affecting the operations of the Company.
The Board considers that this structure will not impair the balance of
power and authority between the Board and the management of
Company and believes that this structure will enable us to make and
implement decisions promptly and efficiently.
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Directors’ Report (continued)
EXEREE (B)

The Board will continuously review and improve the corporate governance
practices and standards of the Company to ensure that business activities
and decision-making processes are regulated in a proper and prudent
manner. More details are contained in the separate Corporate Governance
Report on pages 29 to 35.

Sufficiency of public float

The Company has maintained a sufficient public float throughout the year
ended 31 December 2008.

Donations

During the year, the Group made charitable and other donations amounting
to HK$18,924,000.

Auditor

A resolution will be submitted to the Annual General Meeting of the
Company to re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditor of the
Company.

On behalf of the Board

Lam Wai Wah, Steven
CHAIRMAN
Hong Kong, 8 April 2009
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» Corporate Governance Report
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Board of Directors and Board Committees

The Board

The Board was responsible for the Company’s corporate governance, and
was ultimately accountable for the Company’s activities, strategies and
financial performance.

The Board was mainly responsible for formulating and approving the
business strategies, objectives, policies and plans of the Company, and
monitoring the execution of the Company'’s strategies. It was also
responsible for overseeing the operating and financial performance of the
Company and establishing appropriate risk control policies and procedures
in order to ensure that the strategic objectives of the Company are
materialized. In addition, the Board was also responsible for improving the
corporate governance structure and enhancing communications with
shareholders.

The Board has delegated the responsibilities for the execution of strategies
and decision-making for day-to-day operation of the Company to the
management team headed by the Managing Director, Mr. Lam Wai Wah,
Steven.

The management reported regularly to the Board on the operating and
financial performance of the Company. Development, expansion and other
major capital expenditure and commitment, as well as major financing
decisions were all reviewed and approved by the Board.

Connections between members of the Board

None of the members of the Board have any connections (including
financial, business, family relationship and other material/related
relationships) with each other during the period under review.

Director’s dealing in securities

Having made specific enquiry of all the Directors, the Company confirmed
that all Directors had complied with their obligations regarding dealings in
securities under the Model Code set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules
during the period under review.

Non-executive Directors

The non-executive Directors were not appointed for a specific term but
were subject to retirement by rotation in accordance with the Company’s
Articles of Association.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
EEERRS (&)

BAFHTES
ARREEEREBUNATESRRS AA
RABIALZ EEMEILZRE - LR
EEBIFATEFNOBERIAREEAR
BIAL -

ExgZE8T

EEGTR-"MEEFSZBL  -BEFEXE
GZBE BARBREETHER REFEZ
BENERTHAEFTEMS - WNEEFHR

Independent non-executive Directors

The Company has received confirmation from each of the independent
non-executive Directors as regards his independence to the Company and
considered that each of the independent non-executive Directors was
independent to the Company during the period under review.

Board committees

The Board was supported by three Board Committees. Each Board
Committee has its own responsibilities, power and functions. The chairman
of the respective Board Committees reported to the Board from time to

time and made recommendations on matters discussed when appropriate.

The roles and functions of the Remuneration Committee were as follows:

M mEFRAESSRHEES -

FINZEEMRERBERRE T TE:

oo}

§ (1) to make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy and (1) AR FESLRSAEIEE M BEE
§ structure for remuneration of directors and senior management and RZE#E LGRS IEHRMAESZSHENR
% on the establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for FRETHEEHMEE  MEESEHE
g developing the policy on such remuneration; 2

<

30 (2)  to determine the specific remuneration packages of all executive () EBErFr2EHTEENSREEEMEST

Truly International Holdings Limited

Directors and senior management, including benefits in kind, pension
rights and compensation payments, including any compensation
payable for loss or termination of their office or appointment, and
make recommendations to the Board of the remuneration of non-
executive Directors;

to review and approve performance-based remuneration by reference
to corporate goalsand objectives resolved by the Board from time to
time;

to review and approve the compensation payable to executive
directors and senior management in connection with any loss or
termination of their office or appointment to ensure that such
compensation is determined in accordance with relevant contractual
terms and that such compensation is otherwise fair and not excessive
for the Company; and

to review and approve compensation arrangements relating to
dismissal or removal of directors for misconduct to ensure that such
arrangements are determined in accordance with relevant contractual
terms and that any compensation payment is otherwise reasonable
and appropriate.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
EEERRS (&)

The main role of the Nomination Committee was to assure the process of
appointments and reelection of the Board members were transparent and
to assess effectiveness of the Board as a whole and the contribution of
individual directors to the effectiveness of the Board. The responsibilities of
the Nomination Committee were as follows:

(1) to regularly review the structure, size and composition (including
skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board and make
recommendations to the Board in relation to any proposed changes;

(2)  to identify individuals suitably qualified to become board members
and select or make recommendations to the Board on the selection
of individuals nominated for directorships;

(3) to evaluate the independence of independent non-executive
directors; and

(4)  to evaluate the performance of directors and make recommendations
to the Board in respect of the appointment or re-appointment of
directors and succession planning for directors in particular the
Chairman and CEO.

The roles and functions of the Audit Committee were as follows:

(1) primarily responsible for making recommendations to the Board on
the appointment, re-appointment and removal of the external
auditor, and to approve the remuneration and terms of engagement
of the external auditor, and any questions of resignation or dismissal
of that auditor;

(2)  to review and monitor the external auditor’s independence and
objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in accordance
with applicable standard. The Audit Committee should discuss with
the auditor the nature and scope of the audit and reporting
obligations before the audit commences;

(3) to develop and implement policies on the engagement of an external
auditor to supply non-audit services. The Audit Committee should
report to the Board, identifying any matters in respect of which it
considers that action or improvement is needed and making
recommendations as to the steps may be taken;
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
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ERWmE (&)

to monitor integrity of financial statements, accounts, annual reports  (4)
and interim reports of the Company and to review significant
financial reporting judgments contained in them, including:

(@  any changes in accounting policies and practices;

(b)  major judgment areas;

() significant adjustments resulting from audit;

(d)  the going concern assumptions and any qualifications;

(e)  compliance with accounting standards; and

(f)  compliance with the Listing Rules and other legal requirements
in relation to financial reporting;

to review the Company’s financial controls, internal control and risk  (5)
management systems;

to discuss with the management the system of internal control and  (6)
ensure that the management has discharged its duty to have an
effective internal control system;

to consider any findings of major investigations of internal control  (7)
matters as delegated by the Board or on its own initiative and
management’s response;

to ensure co-ordination between the internal and external auditors,  (8)
and to ensure that the internal audit function is adequately resourced
and has appropriate standing within the Company; and

to review and monitor the effectiveness of the internal audit function.  (9)
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
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Meetings of the Board and Board Committees EEgREEEZEEY

The Directors’ attendances at the meetings of the Board and the Board REZE-—_ZEZNFE+_HA=+—BIEE &

Committees for the year ended 31 December 2008 were as follows: ERESEeNEEeREeeSsNEERIN
T

Number of meetings attended

HESBRY
Board Board Committees
g EExgZEg
Director Audit  Renumeration Nomination
B B B0 RE
Executive directors:
HITES:
Lam Wai Wah, Steven 3 n/a n/a n/a
Mgz i el i -
Wong Pong Chun, James 6 4 0 1 ﬁ
=HIE ﬁw
Cheung Tat Sang, James 6 n/a n/a n/a it
i TP T TP |
Li Jian Hua 2 n/a n/a n/a 33
e TEA E A A E
Independent non-executive directors: %
BYUFHTES:
Chung Kam Kwong 6 4 0 1 ﬁ
fEER o
Heung Kai Sing 2 0 0 0
Ip Cho Ting, Spencer 6 4 0 1
¥H=
Total number of meetings held 6 4 0 1
BITERAH
Auditor’s renumeration ¥ R4 2 % B

For the year ended 31 December 2008, the fees paid to the Company’s #HEZZZNF+_A=+—HIEFE =
external auditor amounted to HK$2,296,000, of which fees paid for non- TSR BlSMNEZ D 2 & A 52,296,000/ 7T -
audit services amounted to HK$267,000. HA ISR B A %5267,000% 7T ©
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
EEERRS (&)

Internal control

The Board was fully responsible for the maintenance of a sound and
effective internal control system within the Group. Throughout the year
from 1 January 2008 to 31 December 2008, the Board conducted reviews
of the effectiveness of the internal control system in all material respects
including but not limited to operational, financial, risk management and
compliance controls. The Group’s system of internal control comprised a
well-defined organizational and management structure with levels and
limits of authority which was established to help achieve business objectives,
safeguard assets against unauthorized access or disposal, ensure the
maintenance of proper accounting records to produce reliable management
and financial information for internal use and for publication purpose, help
management mitigate potential risk factors and ensure compliance with
relevant rules and regulations. The system was designed to provide
reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material misstatement or
loss and to manage rather than eliminate risks of failure in operational
systems so as to achieve the Group’s objectives and long-term goals.

The Group’'s internal control system comprised the following five
components:

(1)  Organizational and Management Structure — the Group has
established an organizational and management structure with
operating policies and procedures, lines of responsibilities and
delegated authority has already been established.

(2)  Authority and Control — the relevant executive Directors and senior
management have been delegated with respective levels of
authorities with regard to key corporate strategy and policy,
contractual commitments and the dealing of price sensitive
information.

(3) Budgetary Control and Management and Financial Reporting —
budgets have been prepared by senior management including various
department heads and were subject to review and approval by the
executive Directors on a regular basis prior to being adopted.
Operating results against budgets have been analyzed and reported
to the executive Directors as a reference to monitor the Group's
strategy and policy. Regular reviews by the Audit Committee and
audits by external auditors respectively have been carried out to
ensure the preparation of the management information and financial

statements are in accordance with the generally accepted accounting
principles, the Group's accounting policies and applicable laws and
regulations.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
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Systems and Procedures — systems and procedures have been
established to identify, measure, manage and control various risks
including business, compliance, operational, financial and information
that may have an impact on the Group and each major department.
Exposure to these risks was monitored by the executive Directors and
the management with reference to the regular reports produced by
the Audit Committee and the external auditors.

Internal Audit — the Audit Committee has performed independent
reviews of the controls and risks identified to ensure that adequate
controls have been put in place and risk elements have been properly

@

©)
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addressed.

According to the review results of the Audit Committee for the year from 1

REEREEER _TT/\F—A—HBE_F
January 2008 to 31 December 2008, the Group’s internal control system is =

ZENF+ A=t HILEFEZERER K

functioning effectively and there was no significant weakness found in the £ [E Z NI BT X430 IE AU EE - TEEZ ﬁ
course of the review processes. The Board has reviewed the effectiveness of ~ H)BREF IWEEIBHELER - EF 2RI A 4
the Group’s internal control systems and is of the opinion that there are no £ B A EIE XZN AN - R 5B AT ET B
suspected frauds, irregularities, internal control deficiencies or suspected (A5 BHUEZE R A E1T A - NEBESIE T 2 S5 lﬁ?
infringement of laws, rules and regulations that cause the Board to believe — fi3ESAf] - RAINRKRENB AR EEETSHE 35
that the systems of internal control are ineffective or inadequate. The Board ~ ANZLEE RS EZREKRUN B TR - TE® -

n

BEARARARER LAFEE2ETEE
B8 ST RIESI # 7 BP B 57 AIER S

is satisfied that the Company and the Group have fully complied with the
code provisions on internal control as set out in the Corporate Governance
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Code for the aforesaid year.
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» Independent Auditor’s Report

BYZHA R E S

Deloitte.
=)

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
TRULY INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Truly International
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred
as the “Group”) set out on pages 38 to 107, which comprise the
consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2008, and consolidated
income statement, consolidated statement of changes in equity and
consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended, and a summary
of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

Directors’ responsibility for the consolidated
financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and the
true and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. This responsibility
includes designing, implementing and maintaining internal control relevant
to the preparation and the true and fair presentation of the consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies;
and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)
BYZEERESE (&)

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability
to any other person for the contents of this report. We conducted our audit
in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the consolidated financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the
amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and true and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31 December 2008 and of
the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly
prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong
8 April 2009
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» Consolidated Income Statement
meElEK

For the year ended 31 December 2008
HE_ZTN\E+-_A=+—HLEE

2008 2007
—EENF —ETLF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
HtaE FExT FHET
Revenue Wz 6 5,669,274 6,493,394
Cost of sales $HE AR (4,973,300) (5,387,613)
Gross profit ESy| 695,974 1,105,781
Other income E A 8 89,397 85,669
Administrative expenses TER (238,876) (168,753)
Distribution and selling expenses 88 M g & AR (140,422) (139,108)
Share of loss of an associate FE(R—KHt & R REE — (445)
Finance costs 5 E A 9 (67,015) (57,821)
© Profit before tax [ B4 B g 339,058 825,323
§ Income tax expense Fris iz i 10 (77,923) (123,294)
S
E Profit for the year REE A 11 261,135 702,029
3 Attributable to: AT ALFES :
< Equity holders of the Company ARFRE 261,121 702,029
38 Minority interests DHAR R = 14 —
2 261,135 702,029
£
f Dividends & B 14 260,046 235,343
()]
C
= Earnings per share B AR 15
= Basic E2YN HK$0.55%7T  HK$1.49587T
C
2 Diluted 3 HK$0.55585%  HK$1.46W7T
:
I
>
=
=




» Consolidated Balance Sheet

mEEERER

At 31 December 2008
R-FENF+-A=+-8

2008 2007
—EENE T LF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
HtaE FET FHT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FERBEE
Property, plant and equipment mE - BENE 16 4,214,029 3,214,313
Prepaid lease payments AN HEERIEA 17 129,630 119,908
Intangible assets mEEE 18 18,307 22,121
Goodwill B 413 413
Interest in an associate R—REE R a2 xR 19 — 391
Available-for-sale investments B ERE 20 5,250 10,500
Deferred tax assets BT IEE 28 754 800
Deposits paid for acquisition of WEEME - BENMEREZ
property, plant and equipment BffEs 28,908 39,148
4,397,291 3,407,594 i
R lcg
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE =
Inventories =35 21 708,344 808,007 d
Prepaid lease payments TN HEERIE 17 3,713 3,245 :
Loans receivable FEE K 22 53,479 53,442 39
Trade and other receivables FE UK BE I8 2 H b fE W S IE 23 649,718 1,030,674 F
Tax recoverable Al W [B] 7 IE 56,997 17,590 u\:g
Derivative financial instruments TESMITA 24 2,752 27,016 éﬁ
Bank balances and cash WRITHEGERAS 25 687,915 554,476
1\@
2,162,918 2,494,450
CURRENT LIABILITIES RBAE
Trade and other payables FEASTBRIE K E b fE S 3R08 26 1,103,723 1,359,790
Tax liabilities HIBER 59,369 76,459
Derivative financial instruments PTESMTA 24 8,731 12,074
Bank and other borrowings, unsecured $R17T N HMEE » MK 27 1,992,050 698,597
Bank overdrafts, unsecured RITEER - MER 526 653
3,164,399 2,147,573
NET CURRENT (LIABILITIES) ASSETS RE (BB EEFE (1,001,481) 346,877
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT BEERRBAE
LIABILITIES 3,395,810 3,754,471
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBEME
Bank and other borrowings, unsecured 817 N HMEE - EiKH 27 120,569 688,059
Deferred tax liabilities FREFIE B E 28 29,136 34,081
149,705 722,140
3,246,105 3,032,331




Consolidated Balance Sheet (continued)
REEEEER(B)

At 31 December 2008
R-FENF+=A=+-8

2008 2007
—EENFE —TTLHF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
K et FER FHT
CAPITAL AND RESERVES RAERFEE
Share capital A% X 29 47,288 47,274
Share premium and reserves A% 15 5518 I 1 3,198,755 2,985,057
Equity attributable to equity RABIRREGER
holders of the Company 3,246,043 3,032,331
Minority interests D E AR R 62 —
Total equity et 3,246,105 3,032,331
3 The consolidated financial statements on pages 38 to 107 were approved HAFEBEZFEI0VEZ GAHBEHREER =
% and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 8 April 2009 and are ZZAEMA N\ BEEE LB E RIFRETE
g signed on its behalf by: WHATATREESE :
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» Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

GORESDE

For the year ended 31 December 2008

BHE_ZTN\E+-_A=t—HItEE

Share Capital
Share option Special redemption  Exchange Other  Retained Minority
Share capital ~ premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserves profits Total interests Total
BRE #E  EARE HE i #E DUBRR
Rx  REHEE 1) 1 #E 1] 1] b3l At B A
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tz TEx TR TR TR TR FhL Fhx TR TR TR
(note &) (note b)
(Wita) (Hitn)
At 1 January 2007 RZE2+E
—-A-B 46830 300,668 10,000 90 8 112,035 219730 1675667 2,366002 — 2,366,002
Exchange differences BEEBMIEER
arising on translation of FIEEZNEEZER
foreign operations and ERRARER
total income directly BRzMAEE
recognised in equity = = = = - 180237 - - 180237 - 180237
Profit for the year FEEET = = = = = = = 702,029 702,029 — 702,029
Total recognised income FEEERR
for the year WALE - - — — — 180237 — 702,029 882266 - 882,266
Shares issued at premium RRERIREG s 18962 = = = = = = 19406 = 19406
Transfer 2221 - - - — — — 91318 91318) — — -
Dividends paid BRRS - - - - - - - (235383) (235313) - (235.383)
At 31 December 2007 RZE5+E
+-A=1t-H 4214 319630 10,000 90 8 9212 311,048 2,051,035 3032331 — 3032331
Exchange differences BEBMIEEH
arising on translation of FIEEZNEZER
foreign operations and BRRANE &
total income directly BRzMABE
recognised in equity — — — - - 212340 - — 212340 - 212340
Profit for the year TEEET - — — = = = = 261,121 261,121 14 21,135
Total recognised income AEEERER
for the year WAEE - - = = = 212340 = 261,121 473461 14 473475
Avising from acqisition of RE-FHBAR
additional interest in BoMER
a subsidiary FELZEE = = = = - - - - - 3 3
Shares issued at premium RRERTRE 14 283 = = = = = = 297 = 297
Transfer 221 — - — — — — 136309 (136309) — — -
Dividends paid BRERS - - - - - - - (260,046) (260,046) - (260,046)
At 31 December 2008 RZBENE
+-A=+-H 47,288 319913 10,000 990 8 504,612 447,357 1915801 3,246,043 62 3,246,105
Notes: M -
(a) The special reserve represents the difference between the nominal value of the — (a) B RE B TR BT FE T 8 1 7,2 AR 17 AR ET 1B B2 K 1

shares of the subsidiaries acquired and the nominal value of the Company’s shares
issued for the acquisitions.

(b) Other reserves comprise statutory surplus reserve and enterprise expansion reserve of
the subsidiaries established in the People’s Republic of China other than Hong Kong
(the “PRC"). According to the Articles of Association of the PRC subsidiaries, a
percentage of net profit as reported in the PRC statutory accounts should be
transferred to statutory surplus reserve and enterprise expansion reserve determined at
the discretion of the board of directors of these companies. The statutory surplus
reserve can be used to set off accumulated loss whilst the enterprise expansion reserve
can be used for expansion of production facilities or increase in registered capital.

(b)
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» Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

AN i —§
GEHERER
For the year ended 31 December 2008
HE_ZTN\E+-_A=+—HLEE

2008 2007
—EENFE —TTLHF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
HiaE THEx FHT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES REE
Profit before tax B 15 A a7 339,058 825,323
Adjustments for: FEE
Interest income F B A (11,223) (12,644)
Impairment loss on A EREREEE
available-for-sale investments 5,250 —
Change in fair value on TESMITAEZ AT EEZE
derivative financial instruments (2,921) (14,942)
Amortisation of development TR M
expenditure 1,170 10,625
Amortisation of trademarks [ELEE: 3] 175 210
Amortisation of technical know-how #7752 3 %0 35 1 44 5,665 —
Allowance for bad debts HEREE 5,178 7,160
Depreciation and amortisation of VI -~ BE R EREITE Ry
property, plant and equipment 417,918 263,398
Release of prepaid lease payments FERR B EFKIE 3,713 3,245
Loss on disposal/write-off of HE s E
property, plant and equipment W E &R B 1,701 1,563
Government grants BT B (1.421) (5,456)
Finance costs W58 R 67,015 57,821
Share of loss of an associate MG —REE R RIEE — 445
Operating cash flows before Ret2EEREHAI 2
movements in working capital KERSRE 831,278 1,136,748
Decrease (Increase) in inventories FERL (EMm) 139,458 (214,932)
Decrease (increase) in trade and JE U BR I8 % E i fE R IE
other receivables A () 433,736 (400,327)
(Decrease) increase in trade and FETBRTE K2 Eoth & < FR 18
other payables ORt ) 450 (234,643) 488,893
Settlement of derivative MESRIAKHE
financial instruments 25,457 —
Cash generated from operations AN B S 1,195,286 1,010,382
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid BAEBNEH (37,073) (48,190)
PRC Enterprise Income Tax paid BB EMEH (107,231) (64,016)
NET CASH FROM OPERATING REEBMELE RS TR
ACTIVITIES 1,050,982 898,176
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REXEH
Purchase of property, BEWE BB KZRE
plant and equipment (1,310,135) (1,584,821)
Advancement of loans B (42,298) (53,442)
Deposits paid for acquisition of WHEME  WFE R&E2
property, plant and equipment BEffiEE (28,908) (39,148)




Consolidated Cash Flow Statement (continued)

FERERER (B)

For the year ended 31 December 2008
HE_ZT)/\F+A=+—HILFE

2008 2007
—EENF ZTTLF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
HiaE FERT FHT
Addition of prepaid lease payments T8~ 1 & SR IE I AN (7,518) (18,213)
Acquisition of intangible assets Wy B 4 1K B (3,196) (19,601)
Additional interest in subsidiary BT B A B 2 BEIME R 32 (324) =
Repayment of loans receivable BB EWE R 45,455 —
Interest received =Rl 11,223 12,644
Proceeds from disposals of HEWME  BEX
property, plant and equipment RBFTE A 10,319 —
Amount repaid from an associate — XN REENE — 352
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING REEBHERAZ
ACTIVITIES BHEFHE (1,325,382) (1,702,229)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES REED %
Repayment of bank and ERERITRAMBEE =
other borrowings (1,965,085) (2,250,203) EZ
Dividends paid EARE (260,046) (235,343) ;
Interest paid on bank and ERRITREMEETRS 43
other borrowings (67,015) (57,821) F
a
New bank and other FrERTREMER =
borrowings raised 2,691,048 2,862,319 e
Proceeds from issue of shares BTN TS 5IA 297 19,406
1\@
NET CASH FROM FINANCING RMETHELEZRESEHE
ACTIVITIES 399,199 338,358
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) HeRBESEEER
IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS i G ) B8 124,799 (465,695)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FzHEERBELZEER
AT BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 553,823 1,018,228
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE EREH s oE
RATE CHANGES 8,767 1,290
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT SR ZRERALEEEE
END OF THE YEAR, represented by 15 687,389 553,823
Bank balances and cash RITEFELES 687,915 554,476
Bank overdrafts RITEZ (526) (653)
687,389 553,823




» Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2008
HE_ZTN\E+-_A=+—HLEE

General

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands under the
Companies Law of the Cayman Islands as an exempted company. The
Company is a public limited company with its shares listed on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The
addresses of the registered office and principal place of business of
the Company are disclosed in the section headed “General
Information” to the annual report.

The functional currency of the Company is United State dollar. The
consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollar
which is different from the functional currency of the Company, as

—REIE

ARBNHASHSRERAEFSQRA
MRS —RZBRAF - KRRAAH
—MLETERRAR  EROEREMA
RHMARRB (R LT - AR
AEMBERE R 2L EME 2 iR
FRI—RER —HHWE -

ARBZNEEER/ET - ARAES
REBELTHE RRBERRES
Z25E%  BEAaUMBRRIIUER
AEEE AN B2

© the directors of the Company consider that Hong Kong dollars is the
§ most appropriate presentation currency in view of its place of listing.
-
’% The Company acts as an investment holding company. Its subsidiaries KRB DREERAR  EWBARZ
g are principally engaged in the business of manufacture and sale of TEXEBRBERFEERZERET R
a liquid crystal display (“LCD") products and electronic consumer ([BREEIRDEMRETFHEEE
44 products including calculators and other electronic components. m o BEGTEREREME TG -

Truly International Holdings Limited

Basis of preparation of consolidated
financial statements

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of
the Company have given careful consideration to the future liquidity
of the Group in light of the fact that the Group’s current liabilities
exceeded its current assets by HK$1,001,481,000 as at 31 December
2008. As at 31 December 2008, the Group had bank and other
borrowings of HK$2,112,619,000, of which HK$1,812,036,000 were
in breach of covenants and accordingly, an aggregate amount of
HK$883,702,000 with maturity date over one year was included in
the consolidated balance sheet under current liabilities.

Subsequent to the balance sheet date, the Group has received waiver
letters from certain banks which confirmed that they have agreed to
waive the right to demand for immediate repayment of the loan
balances of HK$1,633,079,000. Accordingly, bank loans of
HK$834,202,000 which were classified as current liabilities at year
end will be repaid after 2009 according to the original terms of
repayment and the remaining balance of HK$798,877,000 will be
repaid according to the original terms of repayment in 2009. The
directors of the Company believe that these loan facilities will
continue to be available and will not be withdrawn within the next
twelve months from the balance sheet date.

REMBHRR 2 EUEE

ERAEBR_ZEZENF+=-A=
+—B2ARBEAEERERDEE
1,001,481,000 % 7T © N 4R & AR & B 75
X ARRIEZCEEEEAEER
RZRBESL R_TEENEFE+_A=
+—HB AEEBERITREMMER
2,112,619,000 # 7t - H #11,812,036,000 &
TTERTRNGE Bt - EREER
— £ {48 § 5E883,702,000 78 7T 1 5l A AR
CEEBBRORBAMRBIET -

REEB®%R AEBEREHETRTH
EZREH BRAZERTRAEREE
S BB 838 B 345 171,633,079,000 78 7,2
EF - Bt RFRYAREABRIR
TTE 834202000 LR =TT NF
PRERERERESR  MBRTET
7988770008 LA — T ENFIZRIRF]
BREREE - ARRESHE %F
RITEESHEEERATERNEERZ
BERR+—@EARPHED -




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2008
HE_ZTN\E+-_A=+—HLEE

2.

Basis of preparation of consolidated
financial statements (continued)

The directors of the Company are of the opinion that, taking into
account of the internally generated funds of the Group and the
presently available banking facilities, the Group has sufficient working
capital for its present requirements. Accordingly, the consolidated
financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis.

Application of new or revised Hong Kong
financial reporting standards (“HKFRSs”)

In the current year, the Group has applied the following amendments
and interpretations (“new HKFRSs"”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") which are or
have become effective.

HKAS 39 & HKFRS 7 Reclassification of Financial Assets

(Amendments)

HK(IFRIC)-Int 11 HKFRS 2: Group and

Treasury Share Transactions

HK(IFRIC)-Int 12 Service Concession Arrangements

HKAS 19 — The Limit on a Defined
Benefit Asset, Minimum Funding

HK(IFRIC)-Int 14

Requirements and their Interaction

The adoption of the new HKFRSs had no material effect on how the
results and financial position for the current or prior accounting
periods have been prepared and presented. Accordingly, no prior
period adjustment has been required.

REMBBRRZEREE
(&)

ARBEERR Kt RAEERIE
B R BRI ERZRITEER

AEBBEAFTMNEEETMTE AT
TRl GEYBRRERFELE
EERS -

FERMREETEBY
BHEEL(EREYBER

HEA )

AEERN AKRBERBATHETES
MAg((EESFIMAE]) RG2E .J
kB (THAIERMBREEN])
FREAHEER -

AL AR SEEERN
F395E % EE R
BRI E
EBIET75R (1E85])

74 (BRI B A SRS 2R
RERBZEY) F2R:£EK
—ﬁ%%nﬂ EFRHRS
E7%5 (BRI BRI R e BE
mERELZES)

—2EE 125

&5 (BB 75 BB e ER
BERBLZEE) F19%

—REBF 4R — RERM
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
e BmRMEE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2008
HE_ZTN\E+-_A=+—HLEE

Application of new or revised Hong Kong 3.
financial reporting standards (“HKFRSs”)

(continued)

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised
standards, amendments or interpretations that have been issued but

are not yet effective.

& R 3 e] I R4S 7] & B Bt
BHEER ([ EFEBYBER

S£28 ) @)

AT

AEBEWERFPRAUTERMERK
R ] RERT R « BRI R o

HKFRSs (Amendments)  Improvements to HKFRSs' ERTEHRELER BEYIEREER
(&77) 2B
HKAS 1 (Revised) Presentation of Financial Statements? EBSEERE 1S HBHRERNES?
(#&1&3T)
HKAS 23 (Revised) Borrowing Costs? BB EEHER BB 22
g FE23% (FIEET)
= HKAS 27 (Revised) Consolidated and Separate BB EEER 4RE MIBSL
g Financial Statements3 F275% (FYBRT) B T ak
nr—; HKAS 32 & 1 Puttable Financial Instruments and ARG AER TEREEZ
§ (Amendments) Obligations Arising on Liquidation? FERFERENR hEemIA
(1&31) RE 2
L HKAS 39 (Amendment)  Eligible Hedged Items? HAGEH AR SEREIHRIEES
2 395 (185T)
c HKFRS 1 & HKAS 27 Cost of an Investment in a Subsidiary, BEAMBREER HWBAAR -
é’ (Amendments) Jointly Controlled Entity or Associate? FUER HFEEHIE sk
& AR GETER - UNCT vl
E BURUEET)  RERA
o HKFRS 2 (Amendment)  Vesting Conditions and Cancellations? ERUBHRELER  BBIKERIUH?
2% (153T)
é HKFRS 3 (Revised) Business Combinations3 BERMBIWELR EBEOH3
2 FE35% (LIBET)
HKFRS 7 (Amendment)  Improving Disclosures about BERMBWELER MBIEMNEE
Financial Instruments? FE75% (1B3ET) CHIE
HKFRS 8 Operating Segments? BAMGRE rEDRe
AR
HK(IFRIC)-Int 9 & Embedded Derivatives* & (BB % RNELTETA
HKAS 39 HRERERES)
(Amendments) — BRI
BB YR
395 (185T)
HK(IFRIC)-Int 13 Customer Loyalty Programmess &7 (BRI 5 B BWBERT Al
REREZE®)
—RREE 3%
HK(IFRIC)-Int 15 Agreements for the Construction of 7% (BRI 7% i E R iE 2
Real Estate? mERELZEE)

—RRBE 155




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2008
HE_ZTN\E+-_A=+—HLEE

3. Application of new or revised Hong Kong
financial reporting standards (“HKFRSs”)

(continued)
HK(IFRIC)-Int 16 Hedges of a Net Investment
in a Foreign Operations
HK(IFRIC)-Int 17 Distributions of Non-cash
Assets to Owners?
HK(IFRIC)-Int 18 Transfer of Assets from Customers?

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2009 except the
amendments to HKFRS 5, effective for annual periods beginning on or after

1 July 2009
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2009
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2009
4 Effective for annual periods ending on or after 30 June 2009
5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2008
6 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 October 2008
7 Effective for transfers on or after 1 July 2009

The application of HKFRS 3 (Revised) may affect the Group's
accounting for business combination for which the acquisition date is
on or after the beginning of 1 January 2010. HKAS 27 (Revised) will
affect the accounting treatment for changes in the Group’s ownership
interest in a subsidiary. The directors of the Company anticipate that
the application of the other new and revised standards, amendments
or interpretations will have no material impact on the results and the
financial position of the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2008
HE_ZTN\E+-_A=+—HLEE

4.

Significant accounting policies

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments, which are
measured at fair value, as explained in the accounting policies set out
below.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by
the HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. The principal accounting policies adopted are as follows:

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the Company
(its subsidiaries). Control is achieved where the Company has the
power to govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so
as to obtain benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated income statement from the effective
date of acquisition and up to the effective date of disposal, as
appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements
of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with those
used by other members of the Group.

All inter-company transactions and balances within the Group have
been eliminated on consolidation.

Minority interests in the net assets of consolidated subsidiaries are
presented separately from the Group’s equity therein. Minority
interests in the net assets consist of the amount of those interests at
the date of the original business combination and the minority’s share
of changes in equity since the date of the combination. Losses
applicable to the minority in excess of the minority’s interest in the
subsidiary’s equity are allocated against the interests of the Group
except to the extent that the minority has a binding obligation and is
able to make an additional investment to cover the losses.
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4.

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Business combinations

The acquisition of businesses is accounted for using the purchase
method. The cost of the acquisition is measured at the aggregate of
the fair values, at the date of exchange, of assets given, liabilities
incurred or assumed, and equity instruments issued by the Group in
exchange for control of the acquiree, plus any costs directly
attributable to the business combination. The acquiree’s identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities that meet the conditions for
recognition under HKFRS 3 Business Combinations are recognised at
their fair values at the acquisition date.

Goodwill arising on acquisition is recognised as an asset and initially
measured at cost, being the excess of the cost of the business
combination over the Group's interest in the net fair value of the
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities recognised. If,
after reassessment, the Group’s interest in the net fair value of the
acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
exceeds the cost of the business combination, the excess is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The interest of minority shareholders in the acquiree is initially
measured at the minority’s proportion of the net fair value of the
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities recognised.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of net assets and operations of
another entity for which the agreement date is before 1 January
2005 represents the excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group'’s
interest in the fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the
relevant acquiree at the date of acquisition.

For previously capitalised goodwill arising on acquisitions, the Group
has discontinued amortisation from 1 January 2005 onwards, and
such goodwill is tested for impairment annually, and whenever there
is an indication that the cash generating unit to which the goodwill
relates may be impaired (see the accounting policy below).

Capitalised goodwill arising on an acquisition of net assets and
operations of another entity is presented separately in the
consolidated balance sheet.
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4.

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Goodwill (continued)

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill arising from an
acquisition is allocated to each of the relevant cash-generating units,
or groups of cash-generating units, that are expected to benefit from
the synergies of the acquisition. A cash-generating unit to which
goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment annually, and
whenever there is an indication that the unit may be impaired. For
goodwill arising on an acquisition in a financial year, the cash-
generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for
impairment before the end of that financial year. When the
recoverable amount of the cash generating unit is less than the
carrying amount of the unit, the impairment loss is allocated to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit first,
and then to the other assets of the unit pro rata on the basis of the
carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any impairment loss for
goodwill is recognised directly in the consolidated income statement.
An impairment loss for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent
periods.

On subsequent disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the
attributable amount of goodwill capitalised is included in the
determination of the amount of profit or loss on disposal.

Interest in an associate

An associate is an entity over which the investor has significant
influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor an interest in a joint
venture.

The results and assets and liabilities of associate are incorporated in
these consolidated financial statements using the equity method of
accounting. Under the equity method, investments in associates are
carried in the consolidated balance sheet at cost as adjusted for post-
acquisition changes in the Group’s share of the net assets of the
associate, less any identified impairment loss. When the Group’s
share of losses of an associate equals or exceeds its interest in that
associate (which includes any long term interests that, in substance,
form part of the Group’s net investment in the associates), the Group
discontinues recognising its share of further losses. An additional
share of losses is provided for and a liability is recognised only to the
extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations
or made payments on behalf of that associate.
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4.

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Interest in an associate (continued)

Any excess of the Group's share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over the cost of
acquisition, after reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit or
loss.

Where a group entity transacts with an associate of the Group,
profits and losses are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest
in the relevant associate.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable and represents amounts receivable for goods sold in the
normal course of business, net of discounts and sales related taxes.

Revenue from sale of goods are recognised when goods are delivered
and title has passed.

Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a time basis, by
reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest
rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated
future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to
that asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, including building held for use in the
production or supply of goods or services, or for administrative
purposes other than properties under development, are stated at cost
less subsequent accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of property, plant and
equipment, other than buildings and properties under development,
over their estimated useful lives, and after taking into account of their
estimated residual value using the reducing balance method.

Buildings are depreciated over their useful lives, where shorter, in the
terms of respective leases, using the straight-line method.
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4.

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Buildings in the course of development for production are carried at
cost, less any identified impairment losses. Depreciation of these
assets, on the same basis as other property within property, plant and
equipment, commences when the assets are ready for their intended
uses.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise
from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the item) is
included in the consolidated income statement in the year in which
the item is derecognised.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets including technical know-how acquired and the cost
incurred in the registration of trademarks with finite useful lives are
carried at costs less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses. Amortisation is provided on a straight-line basis
over their estimated useful lives.

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense in the
period in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from development
expenditure is recognised only if it is anticipated that the development
costs incurred on a clearly-defined project will be recovered through
future commercial activity. The resultant asset is amortised on a
straight-line basis over its estimated useful life, and carried at cost
less subsequent accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses.

Where no internally-generated intangible asset can be recognised,
development expenditure is charged to profit or loss in the period in
which it is incurred.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are
measured at the difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the
consolidated income statement when the asset is derecognised.

Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is calculated using the first-in, first-out method.
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4.

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the
lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in the consolidated
income statement on a straight-line basis over the term of the
relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and
arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the
leased asset and recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis
over the lease term.
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The Group as lessee KEBERABEA )
Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to profit or loss KERL 2 ENEERE BHEL BRI EZ
on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Benefits BERERBHAR - (ERFTMGEHED Il
received and receivable as an incentive to enter into an operating B2/ 2 B U K P WO %5 75 32 18 49 BA PR LA 53
lease are recognised as a reduction of rental expense over the lease B EmRARESRAI ZRED - Iz
term on a straight-line basis. %

54
Leasehold land and building HELHREF o

The land and building elements of a lease of land and building are
considered separately for the purpose of lease classification, unless
the lease payments cannot be allocated reliably between the land and
building elements, in which case, the entire lease is generally treated
as a finance lease and accounted for as property, plant and
equipment. To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be
made reliably, leasehold interests in land are accounted for as
operating leases.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity,
transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of that
entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in its functional currency (i.e.
the currency of the primary economic environment in which the
entity operates) at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of
the transactions. At each balance sheet date, monetary items
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing on the balance sheet date. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items,
and on the translation of monetary items, are recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which they arise.
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4.

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial statements,
the assets and liabilities of the Group’s operations are translated into
the presentation currency of the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) at
the rate of exchange prevailing at the balance sheet date, and their
income and expenses are translated at the average exchange rates
for the year, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during the
period, in which case, the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of
transactions are used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are
recognised as a separate component of equity (the exchange reserve).
Such exchange differences are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which the foreign operation is disposed of.

Borrowing costs

All borrowing costs are recognised as and included in finance costs in
the consolidated income statement in the period in which they are
incurred.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised as income over the periods
necessary to match them with the related costs. Grants related to
depreciable assets are presented as deferred income and are released
to income over the useful lives of the assets. Grants related to
expense items are recognised in the same period as those expenses
are charged in the consolidated income statement and are reported
separately as other income.

Retirement benefit costs
Payments to the defined contribution retirement benefit schemes are
charged as an expense when employees have rendered service
entitling them to the contributions.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable
and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in the consolidated
income statement because it excludes items of income or expense
that are taxable or deductible in other years, and it further excludes
items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for
current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.
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4.

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial
statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation
of taxable profit, and is accounted for using the balance sheet liability
method. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, and deferred tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against
which deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises
from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and associates,
except where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each
balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or
part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply
in the period when the liability is settled or the asset is realised.
Deferred tax is charged or credited in the consolidated income
statement, except when it relates to items charged or credited directly
to equity, in which case the deferred tax is also dealt with in equity.
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4.

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on the
consolidated balance sheet when a group entity becomes a party to
the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial assets and
financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial
assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted
from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial asset or financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss, loans and receivables and available-for-
sale financial assets. All regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that
require delivery of assets within the time frame established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL")

Financial assets at FVTPL comprise financial assets held for trading. At
each balance sheet date subsequent to initial recognition, financial
assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value, with the changes in fair
value recognised directly in profit or loss in the period in which they
arise.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. At
each balance sheet date subsequent to initial recognition, loans and
receivables (including loans receivable, trade and other receivables,
amount due from an associate and bank balances and cash) are
carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any
identified impairment losses (see accounting policy on impairment
loss on financial assets below).

FTESTHEE®)

TETA
EREELERMEBENREEERKA
TRANBXZANTEESREEER
BERLER 2REEREREEVNS
BRATVEFE WBERBTEREER
TRABERBEZRHKA (RER
ARaFEIEZERMEER SR A ER
SN TRV FEREMATREESS
BRAEZATFEKBEAFEARNE (R
BRME) - WENMEE U A FEIIEZ
CREEXCHABEREBEZRHK
RENESRBE AR -

EHEE
AEBzeMEETEZNBANERIN
RFEIEZEREE ERREURRK
FUARAHHESHEE - TEL—K
TABEBECZEREENREEAREE
BRARDUEER - —RIAEEHREE
JATA T 5 42 Bl B 1) P 3R TE B PR A 32 A
ZEMEEEER -

RESZUAFEIEZESHEE ([RE
#mULAFESIE]D
REZUARFEIEZEREERRER
EEBEZEMEE NP HEREZS
BEA REZUATEIEZSRE
ENRAVEFE MAFEIEET
RELHEEENBRER o

EXRREWRIE

B R K e MR IR T 3 R Y S BB T 5 B
ZEERTUBENRZETEERE
E-RUNTHERRSHEER  BERRE
WKIB (BREEREN - B REMEK
R - B — RS R R R RERTT
‘RERRES)ORAERMNEEAREH
BRABAERE HAREBBARRET
XeREEREEBZEHBR)




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

=
me

B R AR PR (AR

For the year ended 31 December 2008
HE_ZT)/\F+A=+—HILFE

4.

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale investments are non-derivatives that are either
designated or not classified as financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss, loans and receivables or held-to-maturity investments.

At each balance sheet date subsequent to initial recognition,
available-for-sale equity investments that do not have a quoted
market price in an active market and whose fair value cannot be
reliably measured are measured at cost less any identified impairment
losses (see accounting policy on impairment loss on financial assets
below).

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest income
over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all fees on
points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial asset, or, where appropriate,
a shorter period to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets other than financial assets at FVTPL, are assessed for
indicators of impairment at each balance sheet date. Financial assets
are impaired where there is objective evidence that, as a result of one
or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the
financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of the financial assets
have been impacted.

Objective evidence of impairment could include:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or

° default or delinquency in interest or principal payments; or

o it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy
or financial re-organisation.
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4.

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade receivables,
assets that are assessed not to be impaired individually are
subsequently assessed for impairment on a collective basis. Objective
evidence of impairment for a portfolio of receivables could include
the Group's past experience of collecting payments, an increase in the
number of delayed payment, observable changes in national or local
economic conditions that correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, an impairment loss is
recognised in profit or loss when there is objective evidence that the
asset is impaired, and is measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future
cash flows discounted at the original effective interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the impairment loss
is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted
at the current market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such
impairment loss will not be reversed in subsequent periods.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the
impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the exception of
trade and other receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced
through the use of an allowance account. Changes in the carrying
amount of the allowance account are recognised in profit or loss.
When a trade and other receivables is considered uncollectible, it is
written off against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off are credited to profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a subsequent
period, the amount of impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
loss was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is
reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount
of the asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed

what the amortised cost would have been had the impairment not
been recognised.
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4. Significant accounting policies (continued) FESTBER@®
Financial instruments (continued) EWMIA@)
Financial liabilities and equity THERRKRA
Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a group entity are SEERET2ERBERRAIAT
classified according to the substance of the contractual arrangements BEEEI2ERTHZEERERE

entered into and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest
in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its liabilities.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL")

Financial liabilities at FVTPL comprise derivative financial instruments.

BEMEATREZEEZDHE

BATATDZBREERINBAME BER
REETHRBENGEEZEAER -

RESZUAFEIEZEHEAE(RE
#mELAFEFIE]D
REZARFEIEZERABEEL

At each balance sheet date subsequent to initial recognition, financial AEBMT A RUSPHERBESEERD i
liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value, with the changes in fair RERARNTEINEZ2REBENAT Li
value recognised directly in profit or loss in the period in which they BitE EATFEEHEEREDEL EZ
arise. 2 BRI AR RS TR - :
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Financial liabilities E =R i
Financial liabilities (including trade and other payables, bank and SHEEREES REMEMNFIE - R é
other borrowings and bank overdrafts) are subsequently measured at TREMEEUARRITESY - HEBUE éﬁ
amortised cost, using the effective interest method. BRI R RIR B R AT E -

Equity instruments
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest expense
over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash payments through the
expected life of the financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter
period to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.

RATH
ARRBEFTZRATARNREZET
XA IR IR B WP 1S SRR AR

BERRRI=E

BERMEED—BREEHEAGTES
BB BB AN D EF ST H
Fik e BEFIRERY SR SR
BEAGTTHXNFERHE (ER) A
ZIEET AR RBE & M FCERTR EREF
B2IEEX-

B FSIRERR A RE LR o
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4.

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date a derivative
contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured to their fair
value at each balance sheet date. The resulting gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss immediately.

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash
flows from the assets expire or, the financial assets are transferred
and the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of the financial assets. On derecognition of a financial
asset, the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received and receivable and the cumulative
gain or loss that had been recognised directly in equity is recognised
in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation specified in
the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or expired. The
difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in
profit or loss.

Share-based payment transactions
Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

Share options granted to employees after 7 November 2002
and vested on or after 1 January 2005

The fair value of services received determined by reference to the fair
value of share options granted on or after 1 January 2005 is
recognised as an expense in full at grant date when the share options
granted vest immediately, with a corresponding increase in equity
(share option reserve).

At the time when the share options are exercised, the amount
previously recognised in share option reserve will be transferred to
share premium. When the share options are forfeited after the
vesting date or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount
previously recognised in share option reserve will be transferred to
retained profits.

FTESTHEE®)

E@MTR®)

PTESBTA
FETABMRITEANETBHUA
FEER BENSEEOERHER
AFE o FFE £ 2 W2k o B B BN B 70 18
PR o

BUE R
HWtEERRREREZENC TS
FeMEECERAASECKERS
RMEERAREZBRI )RR R @RS
% AlEREERKIUERER - REUH
HREBMEER BEREEESER
EMRBARCERRBAERER
REEEAEMZ ZH - BNEETRER -

WRBRRG Q2 EREERLR - T
HEH - AR A EHEIURER -
BHRccmaERAEREC I HE
NREZZH  SRBEETER -

URGBAERX N 2R S
DN ZE RO BERS 2
X5
R-BB-F+-AtBAZ4ETEE
AR-2ERF-A-ARZUBE2
T
EERBREZAFELBR-FTRF
— BB kRN R ATE
BT 3O FTH R AR BB R 2 5
A2 HERAML - i (BRIER
f88) IR AREESE 10 -

AT BB R 2 B 2 BT IR BCHE Rt
BRAZSBRBRERNEER - 2B
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4.

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Share-based payment transactions (continued)
Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
(continued)

Share options granted to employees on or before 7 November
2002, or granted after 7 November 2002 and vested before 1
January 2005

The financial impact of share options granted is not recorded in the
consolidated financial statements until such time as the options are
exercised, and no charge is recognised in the consolidated income
statement in respect of the value of options granted. Upon the
exercise of the share options, the resulting shares issued are recorded
as additional share capital at the nominal value of the shares, and the
excess of the exercise price per share over the nominal value of the
shares is recorded as share premium. Options which lapse or are
cancelled prior to their exercise date are deleted from the register of
outstanding options.

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible
assets other than goodwill (see the accounting
policy in respect of goodwill above)

At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews the carrying amounts
of its tangible and intangible assets to determine whether there is
any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If
the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years.

A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as income immediately.

FESHEE @)
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5.

ZENF+_A=+—BILFE

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the balance sheet date, that have a
significant risk of giving rise to a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are
discussed below.

Estimated allowances for bad and doubtful
debts

The Group makes allowances for bad and doubtful debts when there
is objective evidence that debtors balances are impaired. The balances
of the debtors are based on the present value of the estimated future
cash flows discounted at the effective rate determined at initial
recognition. The directors exercised a considerable amount of
judgement in assessing the ultimate realisation of these receivables
including the current creditworthiness and the past collection history
of each customer. If the financial credit of customers of the Group
were to deteriorate, resulting in an impairment of their activity to
make payments and therefore affect the estimated future cash flow,
additional allowance may be required.

Revenue

Revenue represents the gross proceeds received and receivable on the
sale of goods during the year, net of sales tax, trade discounts and
returns, and is analysed as follows:

5.

EHFBHEENEER

y//253

RERT -UBRFEEERBEZR
EEAFERNABRNRREIERRLSE
HAEMEZRATHARRAZ RN ©

RIFARZ B

EATBERBNERRBEESR DI
B NEBERRIBRFELBE - B
WRRIRASRDREFTARKRE R 2B E
(ERNTHEAREENERNETE)
B BEERFERETRRFIRNRE
R AELABHE  2ESEFPA
Bl Z A5 AR KB 2 & FRACEE » AR
SERFPZMBERRRALRZL &
BEERENZEL R & E A RK
BeneE  AIARIEHBRINER -

iz

WHEFRNERIEE 2B W& EKAT
BRBABNKREER EZ3MERE
B omT

2008 2007

—EENF —ET+F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FiET FH&T

Sales of LCD products HER BB TRE®D 5,555,605 6,362,402
Sales of electronic consumer products S5 & FE B E @ 113,669 130,992
5,669,274 6,493,394
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XBRHESE

E b

RERAMME  AREANLERA
2% - REBRELNSERRETHEE
B AEENLSESRER2REEE

7. Business and geographical segments 7.

Business segments

For management purposes, the Group is currently organised into two
operating divisions — LCD products and electronic consumer
products. These divisions are the basis on which the Group reports its

primary segment information. DEE R 2 HAE -
Principal activities are as follows: FEEBDOT
LCD products — manufacture and distribution of LCD BREERE — HERDHERRE
products Em BTN EM
Electronic consumer — manufacture and distribution of EfHEER — RERDHEHBFHE
products electronic consumer products BEm .
il
Segment information about these businesses is presented below: WEEB 2 HBBERZ2P0T - g
[5G
i
For the year ended 31 December 2008 Br—ET ) \F+=-HA=+—H I
LEFE 63
&
. «
Electronic o
LCD consumer g
products products Eliminations Consolidated
maE ES o
BETRB{EmM HEEMm ¥ 85 mEe
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FHERT FERT FERT FHERT
REVENUE Uz
External sales SNEH 5,555,605 113,669 — 5,669,274
Inter-segment sales HEREEE — 171,317 (171,317) —
5,555,605 284,986 (171,317) 5,669,274
Inter-segment sales are charged at prevailing market rates. DEEREEDIRE RIS AR -
RESULT E
Segment result DEEE 350,062 1,303 351,365
Unallocated corporate Fval /NG PN
income 76,496
Unallocated corporate ROz RAEHR
expenses (21,788)
Finance costs BB R (67,015)
Profit before tax & 5 A ) 339,058
Income tax expense FrEfFi (77,923)
Profit for the year REE 55 F 261,135
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7. Business and geographical segments (ontinvesy 7. EIERUME D #)

Business segments (continued) XBo¥ =)
As at 31 December 2008 R-BENF+ZF=1+—H
Balance sheet EEBER
Electronic
LCD consumer
products products Consolidated
A BF
HREEM HEBEM wme
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET FHET
g ASSETS BE
= Segment assets DEEE 5,176,542 576,521 5,753,063
5% Unallocated corporate assets APOEZ RAIEE 807,146
E Consolidated total assets REBERS 6,560,209
g
h LIABILITIES B
64 Segment liabilities PHEAEE 1,076,276 27,085 1,103,361
k5 Unallocated corporate liabilities KA F 2 AT & & 2,210,743
é Consolidated total liabilities e BBEBE 3,314,104
[*)]
1%
r_Ic; Other information Hib&H
=
.0
‘g Electronic
E LCD consumer
= products products Unallocated Consolidated
. T s
BREEM HEEM Ko E wEe
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FERT FHERT FHET
Capital additions o= 1,300,916 52,572 — 1,353,488
Depreciation and e R
amortisation 377,963 46,965 — 424,928

Loss on disposal/write-off — Hi& /#5547 % -
of property, plant and 5 Mk i 2 E 18

equipment 1,524 177 — 1,701
Allowance for bad debts 32 BR#45 5,178 — — 5,178
Impairment loss on AREEREZ

available-for-sale B EE

investment — — 5,250 5,250
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7. Business and geographical segments (ontinves) 7. EIERUME D #)

Business segments (continued) XBo¥ =)
For the year ended 31 December 2007 BE—_ZFZEtF+=-HA=1+—H
IEFE
Electronic
LCD consumer
products products Consolidated
R BB B

BTN EREm HEEM e

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FHET FHET

REVENUE W i

External sales HNEH 6,362,402 130,992 6,493,394 P
t&_
RESULT e | .
Segment result AR ES 814,674 14,444 829,118 ﬁg
I

Unallocated corporate income &R 7 it 2 A=A 73,939
Unallocated corporate expenses KA 2 AT &R (19,468) 65
Share of loss of an associate (R —fEEE AT 2 BB = (445) (445) E
Finance costs M%sER (57,821) %
Profit before tax % # AIT Vi A 825,323
Income tax expense FriSHi 2 i (123,294) i

Profit for the year REFE i A 702,029
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7. Business and geographical segments (ontinues) 7. EIERUME D (#)

Business segments (continued) X% o¥ =)
As at 31 December 2007 R-EBZELtF+=ZHA=1+—H
Balance sheet EEBER
Electronic
LCD consumer
products products Consolidated
R BB S
BTN Em HEEM e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET
g ASSETS BE
= Segment assets DEEE 4,636,398 601,431 5,237,829
q% Interest in an associate N—FKEE AR 2R — 391 391
nr—; Unallocated corporate assets AP ZATEE 663,824
z Consolidated total assets e AERRE 5,902,044
66 LIABILITIES =1
E Segment liabilities DHEERE 1,315,594 44,196 1,359,790
E Unallocated corporate liabilites RO Bz A"l BE&E 1,509,923
é’ Consolidated total liabilities SEBABEEE 2,869,713
2
§ Other information Hib&H
©
E Electronic
= LCD consumer
: products products Consolidated
R e B BF
BRBE®D HEEM e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FH&T FHET FHT
Capital additions 1 INE A 1,965,025 66,635 2,031,660
Depreciation and amortisation rE LBy 239,698 34,535 274,233
Loss on disposal/write-off REMEME - BE R
of property, plant and Bl iF
equipment 1,508 55 1,563

Allowance for bad debts 2R B 5,289 1,871 7,160
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7. Business and geographical segments (ontinuesy 7. EIERUME D B #)

Geographical segments HEDE
The Group’s manufacturing operation is located in the PRC. The sales REBREEBURPE - HERM
and marketing functions are located at all reportable segments as SHEEBRMR T2 A H
listed below. & o
The revenue of the Group, analysed by location of customers, is as AEBEREPAEMES BT 2 Wa
follows: mE
Revenue by
geographical segments
RLES FE Dz W
2008 2007
—EENF —ETLF S
HK$°000 HK$'000 il
FERT FHET @
PRC h 4,507,916 5,162,994 "
South Korea [Faf 414,004 595,018 67
Japan =[N 109,410 115,532 @
Hong Kong BB 268,661 178,636 5
Europe BM 179,920 282,110 ﬁEu
&
Others HAth 189,363 159,104
fr
5,669,274 6,493,394 «
A majority of sales arising on sales of goods and the relevant cost of HEBABHREEREE  EEE®

goods sold are denominated and settled in USD. Z AR AN AE ST OIE K 4
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E¥BXRHWEDE )

WEDE®)
AT AREEFRERR T DEEE
EEEAREVE BERSEURE

7. Business and geographical segments (continued) 7.

Geographical segments (continued)
The following is an analysis of the carrying amount of segment
assets, and additions to property, plant and equipment and intangible

assets, analysed by the geographical area in which the assets are WEE :
located:
Additions to
property, plant and equipment
Carrying amount of and intangible assets
segment assets ME - RERRZE
PEEEREE UREBFEEZFE
2008 2007 2008 2007
§ —EENFE —ETEAF —EENF —ETEAF
; HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
g FET FHT FHT FHT
o
S PRC el 5,140,202 4,495,128 1,348,049 1,982,658
§ Hong Kong BE 587,440 697,621 5,352 49,002
68 Europe B 46 87 — —
- Others HAth 25,375 44,993 87 —
é 5,753,063 5,237,829 1,353,488 2,031,660
2
E
E 8. Other income 8. HUWA
g 2008 2007
= —EEN\F  CTTLF
2 HK$°000 HK$'000
FTHExT FHT
Other income includes: Hih A B :
Fair value changes on derivative TESRMIAZ ATEEZS
financial instruments 2,921 14,942
Government grants BT RG 1,421 5,456
Interest income FEHBA 11,223 12,644
Rental income HaA 5,491 4,064
Tax refund on reinvestment (note) BB 2 BRI (M) 56,861 42,289

Note: Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC, the immediate Hist -
holding company of the PRC subsidiaries, 1=F|#2Z2HR 7], is entitled
for the tax refund on the reinvestment on its profits. The tax approval was
obtained from the relevant tax bureau before the financial year end dates.

WRIFF B2 ERERRZSR - FEHE
REAZEERERAGEHFERERA
AR E S TR ERIRE Z HHR
Ko REMBFRERAHZ A - BER
T B2 M EH -
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9. Finance costs 9. HMBEH
2008 2007
—EENF ZETLF
HK$'000 HK$'000
T FAT
Interest on bank and other borrowings RITHEREMBER
wholly repayable within five years AFEARNEEEE Z%%’( 67,015 57,821
10. Income tax expense 10. FREH X
2008 2007
—sENE  —BTLE -
HK$°000 HK$'000 i
T FHET £
i
Current tax: ANEAFRIA ¢ quw
Hong Kong B 8,662 16,300 .
PRC Enterprise Income Tax R ZERTISH 77,271 113,055
Other jurisdictions HEirlAfER 5 110 E
mX
85,938 129,465 ﬁ
Overprovision in prior years: AEFEREERE
Hong Kong &5 (3,116) (1,383) i
82,822 128,082
Deferred tax (note 28) EIERE (K 7128)
— Current year — REE (2,984) (4,788)
— Attributable to a change in tax rate — BBRXEHMEL (1,915) —
(4,899) (4,788)
Income tax expense for the year KEEREHRZH 77,923 123,294
On 26 June 2008, the Hong Kong Legislative Council passed the i 7) NAZ+RE - BENE
Revenue Bill 2008 which reduced corporate profits tax rate from GBEA_ZTZEN\FERAKRIER
17.5% to 16.5% effective from the year of assessment 2008/2009. H ’F]a% EE ZEEN TN
Therefore, Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% (2007: FEEEAAFNGEHBTEHITS%HE
17.5%) of the estimated assessable profit for the year. 165% ° E Lt - BEAEMEH HIEXRFE
B ERREF 2165% (=TT L F ¢
175%) 5
Income tax arising in PRC and other jurisdictions is calculated at the RABEREMREERAEE ZMER

rates prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions. DIRBEBEREAERER 2 HETHE -
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|0. Income tax expense (continued)

ZENF+_A=+—BILFE

10.

On 16 March 2007, the PRC promulgated the Law of the PRC on
Enterprise Income Tax (the “New Law") by Order No. 63 of the
President of the PRC. On 6 December 2007, the State Council of the
PRC issued Implementation Regulations of the New Law. The New
Law and Implementation Regulations changed the statutory tax rate

FrEBis i @)

R-ZTZLF=F+RE " REREA
RHAMBFESESY - FEBRMHE
CEMABRE(HBED - R-_FEL
FHZAKRRB  pEBEBRREFTE
CERIRA) - RIBHBOE R H(E 1 K

to 25%, from 1 January 2008. By BZZEZENF—A—HE AT
N TR B25% o
The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit before tax REFZHBIAX HEEE WR KRB
per the consolidated income statement as follows: A& A 2 FER AT
2008 2007
—EENFE —ETLHF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FAT
Profit before tax % &% BT Vi A1) 339,058 825,323
Tax at the applicable income tax rate of HEAMBHMNES2301%
23.01% (2007: 26.7%) (ZZZT+F:267%) 78,009 220,768
Tax effect of share of profits of an associate {5 —f&] H"yﬁ*’*’“ Al A 2
D37 — 78
Tax effect of expenses not deductible R %Ri 2 ISR 2
for tax purpose 18,628 21,107
Tax effect of income not taxable BAHNMMAZ G2
for tax purpose (14,747) (9,040)
Overprovision in respect of prior years BAEEEBERE (3,116) (1,383)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RERB B BB 2R E 928 1,069
Effect of tax concession granted to a FREBARERHREERZ
PRC subsidiary g — (109,369)
Effect of change in tax rate MEREFH L (1,915) —
Others Hb 136 64
Income tax expense for the year REFEHEHIE 77,923 123,294

Note: The average income tax rate for the year ended 31 December 2008 and
2007, represents the weighted average tax rate of the operations in different
Jjurisdictions on the basis of the relevant amounts of net profits before

taxation and the relevant rate for the year.

For the years of assessment from 1999/2000 to 2005/2006, the
Inland Revenue Department (“IRD") issued profits tax assessments, in
aggregate, of approximately HK$55,050,000 against a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company. The Group lodged objections with the
IRD against the protective assessments. The IRD agreed to hold over
the tax claimed completely subject to the subsidiary in question
purchasing tax reserve certificates for those years of assessment.
These tax reserve certificates amounting to HK$32,402,000 were

purchased by the relevant subsidiary.

K BE—FENFR-_FFLF+-A=
T—HILFRZ FHFT R M EERE
B B B st 7% 57 AR B 5 3R % 4F (A AEL B 7%
K EZ TR AR R 2 T
HE -

BERER(HRER] AARQRZ2EH
ENAIBREZFEHRAR  ER—AN
h/ —BEEE-_FTH,/ —FETNRE
S TR IS AT #% 2 42 KA 4 /555,050,000 78 7T °
AREBFERZREUHTIHEOREBIR
HRE - HEBREESAEKRA2I

R PP R 2 B A RIZARZS
RZHAZBERFNE ZSHNF/E

32,402,007 7T - EHRIEREKIBAREE -
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VA
10. Income tax expense (continued) 10. FRFEHRXH @
The directors of the Company believe that no profits tax is payable by RABEZRA  ASEEAEBEN
the Group in respect of the concerned subsidiary, no provision for BARBMNER - NEAREBARE
Hong Kong Profits Tax in respect of the protective assessments is ERFRE R BB TSI RE o
necessary.
| I. Profit for the year 1. AN Eim A
2008 2007
—EENF —ETLHF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FHBT
Profit for the year has been arrived AEE R ALEMBRTSZIE -
at after charging:
7
Allowance for doubtful debts REREAE 5,178 7,160 4
Auditor’s remuneration % BRAT BN & 2,029 1,977 I
Cost of inventories FERA 4,820,319 5,336,606 'ﬁl"
Depreciation and amortisation on: AR EIB 2T E R#H &
Property, plant and equipment ME - BE MR E 417,918 263,398 E
Development expenditure included TRY O GIABEERA) u\g
in cost of sales 1,170 10,625 i
Technical know-how included BT EZE A (G AHEERKA)
in cost of sales 5,665 — i
Trademarks included in cost of sales BEIE (G AHEKA) 175 210
424,928 274,233
Net foreign exchange losses SMNEEE SR GTATHRER)
(included in administrative expenses) 35,845 12,390
Loss on disposal/write-off of property, HE M E
plant and equipment s R 55 i 2 518 1,701 1,563
Impairment loss on available-for-sale A ERE ZREEBE
investments 5,250 —
Operating lease rental in respect HEMEZKLLHNE R
of rented premises 7,277 4,729
Release of prepaid lease payments RRTERNHAE IR 3,713 3,245
Research costs included in cost of sales IR (BT ASHERKAK) 1,170 10,624
Staff costs, inclusive of directors’ BIXAK  BEEEFHS :
remuneration:
Salaries and other benefits e RAMETR 383,095 374,193
Retirement benefits scheme contributions 3R Kk4& FI| 5T &l it 2 29,913 19,408
413,008 393,601
Of the consolidated profit for the year of HK$261,135,000 (2007: 7261,135000 /& T 2 & F E &F & &
HK$702,029,000), a profit of HK$270,236,000 (2007: Rl &R (= FF £ F 702029000 7

T ) BT = =F ;
HK$235,306,000) has been dealt with in the financial statements of 7C) 270'236'005) 7 7 ( TELE

235,306,000/ 7T EE’S$’/}_ET 2 mER

the Company. R o
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|2. Directors’ remuneration 2. EEME
Lam Wai
Wah, Steven
(Chairman  Wong Pong  Cheung Tat  LiJian Hua
and Chun, James Sang, James (Production
Managing (Executive  (Marketing Managing
Director) Director) Director) Director)
wEE TEE
(XER REE (£E# ChungKam IpChoTing,  Heung Kai
3 ERE (% 4 Kwong Spencer Sing Total
MgmE)  (RTES) EEESR) &®) EHK ¥H= BRH e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FHT FHET FHAT FHAT FHT FHET FHET
2008 —ETN\E
Directors’ fees: EEHe
Executive 1T — - - - - - - -
Independent BT
non-executive — — — — 88 50 50 188
Other emoluments 4 FEITES
paid to the ZEMEE
executive directors:
Salaries and other ¥ & J HAtl
benefits &7 2,031 1,122 1,592 1,888 — — — 6,633
Performance HELEHN L
related incentive %% (Hizt)
payments (note) 5,175 — 312 640 — — — 6,127
Contributions to RKEFIEE
retirement benefit £
scheme 24 24 24 12 — — — 84
7,230 1,146 1,928 2,540 88 50 50 13,032
2007 —BTLF
Directors' fees: EEHE
Executive 1T — = — _ _ _ _ _
Independent BLIEHAT
non-executive — — — — 88 50 50 188
Other emoluments S F#TES
paid to the ZEMME
executive directors:
Salaries and other  #& R HAD
benefits & 2,113 1,272 1,558 1,800 — — — 6,743
performance HEEA Y
related incentive %% (Kizt)
payments (note) 5,000 — 1,250 1,500 — — — 7,750
Contributions to BKEFIETE
retirement benefit {3k
scheme 24 24 24 12 — = = 84
7,137 1,296 2,832 3,312 88 50 50 14,765
Note: Htet -
The performance related incentive payments are determined as a percentage of the HRERG B IR EFHEE —FTENF 1

turnover and operating profit of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2008.

ZAZT-HUFEEREREERFN —FL
PIEE -
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|3. Employees’ emoluments 13. EEME
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the Group, AEEREESFMALTH =2 (=ZF
three (2007: three) were directors of the Company whose T+F: ZR)BEARRIZESE  Hille
emoluments are set out in note 12 above. The emoluments of the FIEHR LXK c EBERA(ZEE
remaining two (2007: two) individuals were as follows: tF - WMB)ALTZBEOT -
2008 2007
—EENF —ETLF
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FEx FHET
Salaries and other benefits e MEAMET 3,494 3,954
Performance related incentive payments £ 2 4% #4l > #% 5 512 475
Contributions to retirement benefit RIRTEFIET B4 5K
scheme 24 36 ﬁ
4,030 4,465 Lﬂ'
i
o N |
Their emoluments were within the following bands: fHAREMEZEBENT : |
73
2008 2007 E
—EENF e B
Number of Number of !ﬁ
employees employees
EE®A EE#A -
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7% 7T & 2,000,000 7T 1 1
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 7% 7T 2 3,000,000 7% 7T 1 1
| 4. Dividends 14 B2
2008 2007
—EENF —ET+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THT FHET
Dividend paid during the year: RAFEERERE
Interim dividend of 25 HK cents f AR B AR 25511
(2007: 25 HK cents) per share (ZZTZT£F : 25%1) 118,220 117,985
Final dividend in respect of 2007 of ZETEF 2 RARBEAR30EL
30 HK cents (2007: in respect of 2006 —EELF . _EBEERFY
of 25 HK cents) per share REARR B.257840) 141,826 117,358

260,046 235,343
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I 4 Dividends (continued)
A final dividend of 1 HK cent (2007: 30 HK cents) per share has been
proposed by the directors and is subject to approval by the
shareholders in the forthcoming annual general meeting.

|5. Earnings per share

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share is based
on the following data:

Hﬁ’u\kf )
ExeRakERAREERIBWL(=
TTLF 08  EAKHBERRE
[ERFAEF RS LA -

BREF

SRR AR R SRS E R TR TS
BEitE

Earnings ZF
2008 2007
—EENE —ETLHF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHT
Earnings for the purposes of basicand ~ F{EstEGRER K

diluted earnings per share BERFZ &R 261,121 702,029

Number of shares RHEE
2008 2007
—EEN\EF —ETLF

Weighted average number of ordinary ~ F{EstEEREARREF 2
shares for the purposes of basic T EEREE
earnings per share

Effect of dilutive potential ordinary BT RS
shares:
Share options issued by the Company RABIFTEETT 2 BB #E

W’

472,805,938 470,304,880

349,309 11,156,785

Weighted average number of ordinary ~ F{EstE G ERF| 2
shares for the purposes of diluted T EmREE
earnings per share

473,155,247 481,461,665
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. L2 < o
| 6. Property, plant and equipment 6. Y% - BEREZE
Furniture, Properties
fixtures and Plant and Motor under
Buildings equipment machinery vehicles  development Total
B B
BgF R#&E BE R RE BRPUWE EY
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET FHET FHT FHET
COST RAE
At 1 January RZTELHF
2007 —H—H 372,649 217,732 1,635,151 20,691 209,591 2,455,814
Currency BHAE
realignment 8,489 13,829 93,676 696 11,845 128,535
Transfer LEgcd 237,277 — — — (237,277) —
Additions = 8,882 125,234 1,636,454 12,155 229,334 2,012,059
Disposals/write off H & /i # — (1,894) (15,632) = = (17,526)
At 31 December RZ-ET A
2007 +=A
ET=E 627,297 354,901 3,349,649 33,542 213,493 4,578,882
Currency B
realignment 19,069 19,034 90,891 668 12,761 142,423
Transfer K 226,254 — — — (226,254) —
Additions RE — 2,785 1,183,190 1372 162,832 1,350,179
Acquisition of a U EEKI B A ]
subsidiary — 113 — — — 113
Disposals/write off H &/ #ifi # — (306) (22,341) (3,094) = (25,741)
At 31 December R=ZZN\&F
2008 +=A
=+-—H 872,620 376,527 4,601,389 32,488 162,832 6,045,856
DEPRECIATION T & Rim &
AND
IMPAIRMENT
At 1 January RZTELF
2007 —H—H 80,497 117,018 838,695 15,884 — 1,052,094
Currency BHAE
realignment 1,540 8,295 54,573 632 — 65,040
Provided for the — 7K4F [ {85
year 9,759 33,119 215474 5,046 — 263,398
Eliminated on &
disposals/write
off — (1,667) (14,296) — — (15,963)
At 31 December A -ZTAF
2007 +=A
Eqr=E 91,796 156,765 1,094,446 21,562 — 1,364,569
Currency Bl
realignment 1611 8471 52,430 549 — 63,061
Provided for the 7 4F & # {85
year 21,009 35,477 358,241 3,191 — 417,918
Eliminated on HE I
disposals/write
off — (1) (11,330) (2,390) — (13,721)
At 31 December R=ZZZN\&F
2008 +=A
=+—8H 114416 200,712 1,493,787 22,912 — 1,831,827
CARRYING BREE
VALUES
At 31 December R =B Z )\ F
2008 +=A
Sr=[g 758,204 175,815 3,107,602 9,576 162,832 4,214,029
At 31 December R -—ZT A4
2007 +=A
E—=E 535,501 198,136 2,255,203 11,980 213,493 3214313

—2BNEEH

A7 o

MEBER

=

f
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| 6. Property, plant and equipment (continued) 6. ¥ BERR®B @
The cost of buildings is depreciated over forty years or the terms of BFRIZRANEFSEAN T FEHE
the respective leases, whichever is the shorter, using the straight-line AHEFH(UREERE)FE -
method.
The other items of property, plant and equipment are depreciated on Himx  WMELXREZIEB UASRER
a reducing balance method at the following rates per annum: B - AT ERFERE -
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 15% to 50% R HEREHE 15% %= 50%
Plant and machinery 15% to 40% 5 R 2% 15% Z= 40%
Motor vehicles 25% to 45% B 25% ZE45%
© 2008 2007
Q —EENFE —ETLHF
9 HK$"000 HK$'000
< FERT Fi&TT
g The carrying value of the Group’s FIRAEEYEER
< property interests shown above REMESLE :
76 comprises:

Leasehold properties in Hong Kong BEPBHBAOEEEFEZ

held under medium term leases HEWm= 9,689 10,013

Leasehold properties in the PRC REFEBANEREFEEZ
held under medium term leases HEWm 748,515 525,488
758,204 535,501

Truly International Holdings Limited

| 7. Prepaid lease payments 17. AAHEERE
2008 2007
—EENF —ETLHF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTEx FHET
The Group's prepaid lease payments REBEBNBEERERRE
comprise:
Leasehold land in Hong Kong held BEFPRNEESEEZ
under medium-term lease HE+H 9,011 9,249
Land use rights in the PRC held REPEBANTERERFE 2
under medium-term lease + b {5 A 4 124,332 113,904
133,343 123,153
Analysed for reporting purposes as: FIERBHODTAOT ¢
Non-current asset JEmEEE 129,630 119,908
Current asset REEE 3,713 3,245

133,343 123,153
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. 2 >
18. Intangible assets 18. B EE
Development Technical
expenditure know-how Trademarks Total
BRIE HWEXAR mE R
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET FHET
COST RAE
At 1 January 2007 RZZEELF
—H—H 43,602 — 3,464 47,066
Additions il = 19,601 = 19,601
Write off i gH — — 2,052) (2,052)
At 31 December 2007 R_-ZTE+4F
+=ZHA=+—A~ 43,602 19,601 1,412 64,615
Additions 40 — 3,060 136 3,1% i
ﬂ.}_
At 31 December 2008 R -ZZT N\FE l{?
+=A=+—8H 43,602 22,661 1,548 67,811 e
I
AMORTISATION ey 77
At 1 January 2007 RZTTLF
—A—8 30639 — 3072 33711 E
Provided for the year NS B 10,625 — 210 10,835 Tft
Eliminated on write-off il 4 ¥ 84 — = (2,052) (2,052)
At 31 December 2007 R -ZTZT 4 4‘5
+ZA=+—H 41,264 = 1,230 42,494
Provided for the year REFREE 1,170 5,665 175 7,010
At 31 December 2008 R —ZZNF
+=-A=+—H 42,434 5,665 1,405 49,504
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 31 December 2008 R =TT NF
+=-A=+— 1,168 16,996 143 18,307
At 31 December 2007 R_-ZTZT+4F
+=-—A=+—8H 2,338 19,601 182 22,121
Development expenditure, technical know-how and trademarks are BERXH BRWNEENBELEEDAE

amortised on a straight-line basis over 4 years. OREH - MIEHIRINE -
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. . = pon = 3¢
19. Interest in an associate 9. R—REBE QAT 2=
2008 2007
—EENF ZETLF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FHET
Cost of investment in unlisted associate % & 3E_F Mk & A T A — 500
Share of post-acquisition profits, net of  FE(5 U BE &% A - F1fk 2 Uk A& B
dividend received — (109)
— 391
During the year, the Group acquired additional equity interest of 44% REEF - REEYHETruly Semiconductors
© in Truly Semiconductors (Korea) Ltd. Accordingly, the associate (Korea) Ltd. 2 44%Fa5MERS Bt + %5
§ became the subsidiary of the Group. EBNRKARNER KB AT -
g
[J]
'Jr_‘u Particulars of the associate of the Group at 31 December 2007 are as AEBR-_ZEZS+HF+_A=+—"HZ
2 follows: BEDRZFHBOT
<
78 Proportion
5 of nominal
‘g value of issued
'a Country of capital held
.g’ Form of incorporation/ by the Group
2 business operation Class of shares KEBEEZ  Principal
rEE Name of associate structure R T held BBITRAE  activity
5 BENTEE EBEBERX EEER FrE R 43 28 Bl REBEZ2EDL FEER
g Truly Semiconductors (Korea) Incorporated South Korea Ordinary 50% Trading of electric
£ Ltd. (formerly known as Truly consumer products
> Instrument (Korea) Company
> . .
= Limited)
Truly Semiconductors (Korea) St AAE O &R A ETHBERES

Ltd. (A7#&Truly Instrument
(Korea) Company Limited)

The summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s AEFEME AT EBYBERERAT -
associate is set out below:

2008 2007

—EBENF —ETELF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FTHEx FHET

Total assets BmEE — 1,408

Total liabilities FEN=NE — (627)
Net assets FEE — 781

Group's share of net assets of an AREEEGE—RBE DT

associate FEE — 391
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9. Interest in an associate (continued)

9. R—FREENT 2R o)

Year ended Year ended
31.12.2008 31.12.2007
BZE H=
—BBNE  —FTLH
+=ZA=+—-8B +=A=+—-H
HEE IEFE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FAT
Revenue Wz — 4,438
Loss for the year NEEEE — (890)
Group’s share of loss of an associate REBEFREE—KEE QA
for the year 18 — (445) "
hH_
ﬂ.}_
=
ﬁrr
. . ~. 4
20. Available-for-sale investments 20 JHEHERE )
79
2008 2007 =
—22N\F —TTLF &
HK$°000 HK$’000 i
FiExT FAT &
H<
Unlisted equity shares, at cost MR GO (RKAE) 10,500 10,500 b
Less: Impairment loss recognised B ERERBEERE (5.250) —
5,250 10,500

ZREBEE-FNALTNLAERETH
FLmEmkd BRESEQAFELZ
HEBEBR  AAREERRELQF
ETEEREFE  BRZEEAREKAE
ERREAR °

The investments represent the unlisted equity shares issued by private
entities in Japan. The investments are stated at cost less impairment
at each balance sheet date because the range of reasonable fair value
estimates is so significant that the directors of the Company are of
the opinion that their fair value cannot be measured reliably.

AEBETRBRZEERE ZETR
SMER - WERANFE R E 185,250,000

recovered from the investments. BT o

The Group recognised an impairment loss of HK$5,250,000 for the
year after taking into account the estimated cash flows to be
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. A
21. Inventories 21, B8
2008 2007
—seNFE T
HK$'000 HK$'000
T FHBT
Raw materials R E 202,230 395,163
Work in progress TR 322,320 203,521
Finished goods RUAK i 183,794 209,323
708,344 808,007
. =
22. Loans receivable 2 EBWER
2008 2007
—EENE  —TTLH
HK$'000 HK$'000
T FHAT
Fixed-rate loan receivable EEERE R
— At contemporary lending rate — BRPBARBITAIHRZ
quoted by the People’s Bank of FEAE SR =T (et T)
China (Note 1) 22,727 42,891
— At 4% (Note 2) — R K% (M at2) 5,990 —
Interest-free loans receivable (Note 3) REEWER (K E3) 24,762 10,551
53,479 53,442
Aging of loan receivables which are past due but not impaired: B iR EE R E 2 B E KRB 5 T i
T
2008 2007
—ETN\E  —BRtE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FET
Within 60 days 60K LA A 33,932 —
More than 60 days 60K A — 42,891
33,932 42,891
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22. Loans receivable (continued)

Notes:

1.

The amount is unsecured and will be repayable within one year from the
date when the loan agreement was entered into. Based on the loan
agreement entered into between a subsidiary of the Company (“subsidiary”)
and an independent third party, after the expiry of the loan agreement, the
independent third party agrees to repay and compensate the subsidiary by
repaying the principal outstanding balance together with the interest which
is calculated on the basis of the contemporary lending interest rate of
0.625% (2007: 0.465%) per month provided by the People’s Bank of China.
Any further delay in the repayment of the outstanding balance will subject
to an additional penalty interest of 30% (2007: 2% per month).

2. The amounts are unsecured, bears fixed interest rate of 4% per annum and
repayable within one year the date when the loan agreement was entered
into.

3. The amounts are unsecured, interest-free and repayable within one year the

date when the loan agreement was entered into.

22

. BEWER @)

Kt
1.

ZABRERERARE A G A
HE—FRYE - RIFEERRF]— KM E L E]
(THBRA]) BE—EB T E=FF IHE
A RZBEA % BUE=
TR EERIF BIREREER SR F
BB A RIRTT A FTHE A Z 3 F
K 0625% (ZFLFLF :0465%) BE
EIE  UEERGENELR] - Hi#—
HIEEEEAREZ - AIZBEN30% (=
TTLEFH2%) HEE °

ZHEREEA - RETFFIE 4% 71 &E
BRREA sk H A —F A4 -

ZAEREER 2B AAREA G HE
7 A HE—F AN o

23. Trade and other receivables 23 BEZRHMEWKFIE

2008 2007
—EENEF —ETLF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FHET
Trade receivables JEE 5 BR 3K 610,918 972,272
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts W SRR (6,745) (9,150)
604,173 963,122

Other receivables, deposits and EMEURIE - E& RBARIEA
prepayment 45,545 67,552
Total trade and other receivables JFE LA BR B N HL A FE N R IE 425 649,718 1,030,674

The Group's trade receivables that are denominated in currencies
other than functional currencies of the relevant group entities are set

AEBNERSEERNEEEAINC
E¥IE 2 RUBRRE ST

out below:
2008 2007
—EENE 2T LF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Denominated in HK$ WABTTEHE 61,847 53,139
Denominated in Euro AR TEHE 1,346 2,115

—2BNEEH

P

FEREE R

=

f
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23. Trade and other receivables (continued) B BEFREMEKRTE )

The Group allows an average credit period ranging from 30 to 90
days to its trade customers. The following is an aged analysis of trade

AEBGETHESEF FH0E0RM
EEH - RIS B 2 FE YRR TR R AR B

receivables, net of allowance for doubtful debts at the reporting date: HZREDITIT -

2008 2007

—EEN\F ZET+F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FERT FAT

Within 60 days 60K AR 546,827 909,199

61 to 90 days 61£290K 28,337 14,271

More than 90 days PN 29,009 39,652

g 604,173 963,122

H

'% Before accepting any new customer, the Group has assessed the REMERFEPA - NEESFGHE
§ potential customer’s credit quality and defined credit rating limits for ERFEEEEZLREESERPZEEE
8<2 each customer. Limits attributed to customers are reviewed once a FRBRE - LR TRFZEERBESEE

Truly International Holdings Limited

year. 57% (2007: 81%) of the trade receivables are neither past due

nor impaired.

Included in the Group’s trade receivable balance are debtors with
aggregate carrying amount of HK$258,744,000 (2007:
HK$181,902,000) which are past due at the reporting date for which
the Group has not provided for impairment loss as there has not been
a significant change in credit quality and the amounts are still
considered recoverable. The Group does not hold any collateral over

these balances.

Ageing of trade receivables which are past due

BE—Ro5I% (=T

T F :81%) L&

REBZ EREREHANBIEEERERE
#258,7440008 L 2 FEMBE R (ZZEE+
4 1 181,902,000 7T )
HEB®BH MHHAEEEEEZWHEEX
BEEZSENRATKE - A AE
B LR EEERE o NEBWE

ZERERRE

FLER FAERRIT A (T

£ 18 H{B R E 2 FE W iR =X Bk

but not impaired: RoWmmE :
2008 2007
—EENE —BRLH
HK$’000 HK$/000
THExT FHT
Within 60 days 60K AP 201,398 127,979
61 to0 90 days 61E90K 28,337 14,271
More than 90 days 90KIA E 29,009 39,652
Total ot 258,744 181,902
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. =] =+ .
23. Trade and other receivables (continued) 23 BEZRHEHMEBEWNKIE
Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts REEBENEH
2008 2007
—EENF —ETLHF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Balance at beginning of the year FHEH 9,150 12,907
Allowance for doubtful debts recognised B 732 5 BE & 1 5,178 7,160
Amounts written off as uncollectible W A AT Uk B 2 208 (7,583) (10,917)
Balance at end of the year FIREERR 6,745 9,150
Included in the allowance for doubtful debts are individually impaired HREBEARBEREELEARF LR 5
trade receivables with an aggregate balance of HK$5,571,000 (2007: HNE - ARAEE RERBRIEE ﬁ
HK$7,160,000) which the debtors have financial difficulties in {8 /45,571,000 7T 2 %8 37 &k (B FE W BR 5K H?w
repaying the outstanding balances. The Group does not hold any —ZEZTHF 7160000 T) c AEE If*ilW
collateral over these balances. W R F AR TR A -
83
I
= = «
24. Derivative financial instruments 24 fTEE€®MTE z
£
Assets Liabilities ﬁ
BE 8E& -
2008 2007 2008 2007
—EENF —TTLHF —EENF —ETTLHF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHET FET FAT
Foreign currency HNE R B & A
forward contracts 2,752 27,016 1,043 12,074
Interest rate swaps | 2= $5 HA — — 7,688 —
2,752 27,016 8,731 12,074
The derivative financial instruments are measured at fair value at each MESRTITARSHEERARAFER
balance sheet date. The fair value of derivative financial instruments E-TESBIAZRAFETIZSEINE
is estimated using discounted cash flow analysis with reference to ZHIBEERK RARTTKA K2 T
market rate of foreign currency and/or interest rate at the balance RREEB2FE - FAFRBERE

sheet date for remaining duration of the outstanding contracts. hE -
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24. Derivative financial instruments (continued) 24 TEELRMIE»

() Major terms of foreign currency forward contracts as at 31 () HINEERHEHNR=_ZZTNE+_-A
December, 2008 are as follows: = t—RAZEZERWT :

Forward exchange

Aggregate principal amount Maturity rates
AEHBE SRR EHEZR
US$12,000,000 January 2009 Sell Renminbi (“RMB”)/buy
12,000,000 7T —EENEF—A United State dollars
("US$") US$ at 6.630
10 6.643
6630526643 2 HE H
g ARBTARED
3 BAZT([£7))
% US$12,000,000 January 2009 Sell US$/buy RMB at 6.762
= 12,000,000 7T —EThE-A t0 6.7625
2 R6.762%6.7625 2 B & H
b £/ BAARY
84
k5 (i) Major terms of interest rate swap agreements are as follow: (i FEREHBRZEZHEREOT
£
?;n At 31 December 2008 Maturity Term
< R=ZBENF+=A=+—H EE- ! 1R
:r_ECw HK$100,000,000 2011 From 3 months Hong Kong
B 100,000,0005% 7T —T——%F Interbank Offered Rate
c ("HIBOR") to the fixed
é rate of 2.39% per
2 annum
N F3ME A B ABRST
FEHFE([HBRT
REEFED EZEE
FFIE239%
HK$100,000,000 2011 5.25% per annum minus
100,000,0007% 7T —ET——F 3.95%, subject to the

adjustment of accrual
factor to 3 months
HIBOR

FH525%#3.95%
AIRIR3ME R B AR
FEFEHETEE
fEH AR
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25. Bank balances and cash

The Group’s bank balances and cash that are denominated in
currencies other than the functional currencies of the relevant group

25 SRITEERERS

REBNFREE

B®IEZRITHE

ERVEEEUAINZ
FRIREEFHIIMT

entities are set out below:

Japanese

Yen HK$ Us$
H BT xR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET

As at 31 December 2008 RZFZENF
+=A=+—8 14 26,392 138

As at 31 December 2007 RZFTELF
+=ZA=+—H — 51,273 —

Bank balances carry interest at variable rates which ranged from
0.01% to 3.6% (2007: 0.61% to 5.0%) per annum.

26. Trade and other payables

The following is an aged analysis of trade payables at the balance

BRITEFENT001%E36%(—TZ+

F 1 061%%E50%) ZIZFEFEFEFE -

26 B IRMRREMEN KA

WEER 2 ENBRARR AT

sheet date:
2008 2007
—EENF —EELF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FET
Within 60 days 60K LA 283,500 664,287
61 to 90 days 61 £ 90K 130,837 128,189
More than 90 days 90K A E 376,992 181,830
791,329 974,306

The average credit period on purchases of goods is 60-90 days. The
Group has financial risk management policies in place to ensure that
all payables within the credit timeframe.

The Group's trade payables that are denominated in currencies other
than functional currencies of the relevant group entities are set out

REBEERNFHEEHRROEDX - K

SEHEAEE ZMBRREZBR
MERIMEERANAEBAFOA -

AEBNEHEEEERY

BB LAINZ

ERIEZ BANBRREIMT

below:
2008 2007
—EENF —ETLF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHT
Denominated in HK$ LA TTEHE 128,320 384,237
Denominated in Japanese Yen LAB E&HE 317,000 107,695
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. /= i -
27. Bank and other borrowings, unsecured 27 |MITRHEMEE  H|IKH
2008 2007
—EENF ZETLF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FHT
Bank loans RITEE 1,744,414 1,094,121
Trust receipt loans EBIEER 333,795 268,030
Other loans HEMER 34,410 24,505
2,112,619 1,386,656
The Group's bank and other borrowings RNEBABBEEEEENEEE
that are denominated in currencies ANz B HIE 2 $R1TR
other than the functional currencies HEiEEEMT :
of the relevant group entities are
set out below:
Denominated in HK$ LA TTEHE 1,817,633 1,195,416
Denominated in Japanese Yen B EEE 85,860 9,559
The maturity profile of the bank and BITRHMBEEZZHAERDT ¢
other borrowings is as follows:
On demand or within one year REHE SN —FA 1,992,050 698,597
More than one year, but not exceeding — & BRRER
two years 53,841 440,680
More than two years, but not exceeding FREEBR TERN
five years 66,728 247,379
2,112,619 1,386,656
Less: Amount due within one year B IR RBAaER 2
shown under current liabilities —F A E|HRIE (1,992,050) (698,597)
Amount due after one year —F & BFA 120,569 688,059

All the Group's borrowings are variable-rate borrowings which carry
interest at HIBOR or London Interbank Offered Rate (“LIBOR") plus
certain basis points. Interest is repricing every three months and the
range of effective interest rates is at 1.31% to 5.85% (2007: 5.13%
to 7.88%) per annum.

As at 31 December 2008, the Group had bank and other borrowings
of HK$2,112,619,000, of which HK$1,812,036,000 were in breach
of covenants and accordingly, an aggregate amount of
HK$883,702,000 with maturity date over one year was presented as
current liabilities in the consolidated balance sheet.

AEEMBRBEHRIBEE  HIZE
BIRITRAERERBRBETRERE
((RBERITRERE ) nE FEBE
B-FEE=MAET BEEMNERZF
BRNF131%E585%( T+ F:
5.13%%7.88%) °

R-ZEENFE+_A=+—8H K&£H
ZIRITREMEER £2,112,619000% 7T
H #h1,812,036,00078 L iE R4 - Eit 4
¥H /883,702,000 7T < B R H BB — F
ZHRERGEEEARKEIRRDE

18 e




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
REMBRRMEE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2008
HE_ZTN\E+-_A=+—HLEE

28. Deferred tax liabilities 28 EEHIEEE
The following are the major deferred tax liabilities (assets) recognised EARFERZAFEANBRNEZIRT
and movements thereon during the current and prior years: MEBEEE) REEZEHNT -

Accelerated tax

depreciation Others Total
IEBIETE Hit HEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHET FHT
At 1 January 2007 R-_ZEZT+F—H—H 38,905 (836) 38,069
(Credit) charge to income for REEWAR (ER) X84
the year (4,824) 36 (4,788)
At 31 December 2007 R-ZZLF
+=-—A=+—H 34,081 (800) 33,281 ﬁ
(Credit) charge to income for REFWRAF (ER) X s
the year (3,024) 40 (2,984) @TZ
Effect of change in tax rate RSB (1,921) 6 (1,915) Il
At 31 December 2008 RZZZENF 87
+=-A=+—H 29,136 (754) 28,382 E
S
T
The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances for financial RUBE2RME 2BERIBLE SRS T
reporting purposes: T E
2008 2007
—EENF —ETLF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Deferred tax liabilities BEIBAE 29,136 34,081
Deferred tax assets BT IBEE (754) (800)
28,382 33,281
At the balance sheet date, the Group has unused tax losses of REEH AEBZAHREEBKEER
HK$37,014,000 (2007: HK$31,947,000) available for offset against 37,014,000 7T ( = FZ £ 4 : 31,947,000
future profits. No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of Bor) A AR AR EF o R KRG
such losses due to the unpredictability of future profit streams. FT PR Z0m ) - B N0 AR B Rk S 1R T
Included in unrecognised tax losses are no tax losses (2007: tax losses RBELERIBEE - AR ZBBEEE
of HK$6,573,000) that will expire from 2008 to 2010, other losses BEEMR-_EENEE-_T—ZTFEFRZ
may be carried forward indefinitely. BMBEBESE T (ZEZT+F : HEEE

6,573,000/ 7T ) + i E fth &5 18 ] B PR HA 45
Q;i} °
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28. Deferred tax liabilities (continued) 28. iE NL@EIE%F( &)
At the balance sheet date, the Group had other deductible temporary REER - RNEE 2 H A o] R 8 =
differences of HK$6,218,000 (2007: HK$6,218,000) available for %86,218,00078 7L (Z T Z t F : 6,218,000
offset against future profit. A deferred tax asset has not been iﬁﬁ)ﬂﬁﬁf’ﬁﬁﬁﬁfﬁmﬁiﬂ o AR BEMS
recognised due to the unpredictability of future profit streams. AR ZER - M EEREEHIEE
= o
Under the New Law of PRC, withholding tax is imposed on dividends BEPBEOTEEZ BZETNF—A
declared in respect of profits earned by PRC subsidiaries from 1 —He - FEA BB A R ERE 2 & AT
January 2008 onwards. Deferred tax has not been provided for in the k2R EBHMIENT - BRAEE
consolidated financial statements in respect of temporary differences ge iz %'Jiﬁﬁt%gﬁﬁﬁ%é@ BERERERSE
attributable to accumulated profits of the PRC subsidiaries as the AR ERAI RS RE R - Fut I ST
2 Group is able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary FEUBHREP P EMNE ARz REt
§ differences and it is probable that the temporary differences will not i M) FE A B PR 22 R AE L IR SE R IR A o
% reverse in the foreseeable future.
o
- 29. Share capital 29. BA&
88
g Number of shares Share capital
E R 8 [N
8 2008 2007 2008 2007
3 —2BN\F —2DLE -BEN\F -ITTLF
rECu HK$'000 HK$'000
2 FERT FAT
é Ordinary shares of EFREEIABITZ
> HK$0.1 each TER
2
Authorised: VETE
At 1 January and R—A—BR
31 December +=-—A=+—H 650,000,000 650,000,000 65,000 65,000
Issued and fully paid: B 3T REE :
At 1 January H—A—H 472,744,527 468,296,527 47,274 46,830
Exercise of share TP EE R HE
options 135,000 4,448,000 14 444
At 31 December W+=-—RB=+—8 472,879,527 472,744,527 47,288 47,274

Details of the exercise of share options are set out in note 35. TR AR 2 S BT 535
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30.

31.

ENF+—A=+T—BLFE
Capital risk management 30 EXEBERE
The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group REBETERNEEABRAEEEERS
will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the BrE  RANERE(CEREERTE
return to shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and BRRGREALBR - NEB 2 QR
equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged from BRE F—FERBFTE
prior year.
The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt, which AEENEAREHEB FH(BER
includes the borrowings disclosed in note 25 (net of cash and cash HNMEECER  KNEKRe kRS
equivalents) and equity, comprising issued share capital and reserves. EEER) RERE(BEEETRARH
&) 4K -
The directors of the Company reviews the capital structure ARAEETHEEHEREE - R
periodically. As a part of this review, the directors consider the cost of B - EFEREAKARKH
capital and the risks associates with each class of capital. The Group FH R & AAE ?@ZJ—L g AEEBEE
will balance its overall capital structure through the payment of B AR A TERR D - BEITHE
dividends and new share issues as well as the issue of new debt or ,E;‘é@fﬁﬁﬁi"%b/{$1ﬂﬁﬁﬁ BB B ARGEHE o
the redemption of existing debt.
Financial instruments 3. €EtT A
a. Categories of financial instruments a. SRIASE
2008 2007
—EENF ZETLF
HK$'000 HK$'000
T FH&TT
Financial assets SREE
Loan and receivable (including cash and & & i W k18
cash equivalents) (BEReKAEEFMEER) 1,349,801 1,552,611
Available-for-sale investments AEEERE 5,250 10,500
Derivative financial instruments TTESRT A 2,752 27,016
1,357,803 1,590,127
Financial liabilities ez h=R i
Amortised cost BHEHR R 3,022,617 2,722,090
Derivative financial instruments TESBMIE 8,731 12,074
3,031,348 2,734,164

—2BNEEH
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31. Financial instruments

b.

3, €M T A

Financial risk management objectives and b. REREEERERERE
policies
The Group’s major financial instruments include bank balances REEZFZSHMTARRERITE
and cash, loans receivable, derivative financial instruments, EREE - BUWER TE€mT
available-for-sale investments, bank and other borrowings, A AHHERE RITEERE
trade and other receivables and trade and other payables. MfEFR - FE U AR IE K2 H fth FE U SR IE
Details of the financial instruments are disclosed in respective AR FERBRIE R KM ERFRIE -
notes. BT AZFERESEMTSRIEL
HEE -
The management monitors and manages the financial risk I8 B E A A B E b AT 9 AT
relating to the Group through internal risk assessment which RHBRERE R EHE - HmE
analyses exposures by degree and magnitude of risks. The risks RREBERNEEEBANSFE
include market risk (including currency risk, interest rate risk %o ZEREREEMSER (2
and other price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies B R - AR E R R E A B R
on how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The ®) EERBRRTEESER -
management manages and monitors these exposures to ensure FEZERBROBERHENTX - &
appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and BEERLKEREARRE - Bk
effective manner. R B RO B e BT B o
The Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged from prior 755 (B B B BE 5K IR {7 B A — 48
year. A e
Market risk 5 /8 B2
(i) Currency risk (i) E%EME
The Group undertakes certain transactions denominated REBE 2 H TR 5 AINERT
in foreign currencies which are different from the United B ZEINEREAEKRE D
States dollar and Renminbi, the functional currency of AR EE (ETRARE)
the respective subsidiaries. In addition, the Group has AN EHE o N - REE
entered into foreign currency forward contracts, as set EEFIINERBEH - 15
out in note 24. RBfEE24
The carrying amounts of foreign currency risk arising REE HE - LAINESIE 2
from foreign currency denominated monetary assets and ENEERERBEEEZ
monetary liabilities at the reporting date are as follows: SN R 2 BREELNT ¢
Liabilities Assets
=i BE
2008 2007 2008 2007
—2BENFE _FTLF —ZENF _FTLHF
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FBx FHET FERT FAT
Hong Kong dollar & 7T 1,967,542 1,801,067 88,271 139,929
Japanese Yen H 438,826 130,710 5,264 10,500
Euro BT 37 382 1,347 2,115
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31. Financial instruments (continued) 31.

b. Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)

(i) Currency risk (continued)
The Group continually assesses and monitors the
exposure to foreign exchange risk. The management will
consider hedging significant foreign currency exposure
should the need arise.

Sensitivity analysis

The following table indicates the approximate change in
the Group's profit before taxation for the year in
response to reasonably possible change in the functional
currency i.e. United State dollar to the relevant currencies
which the Group have significant exposure at the

TRITA

(#)

b. TEEREERBRRIEE

(%)
m%ﬂ/ﬁ%(é‘%)
() ExEREkE)

R i R E
AR ERERRAREN
=B E RS EAR -

BRED
TRETER
XTL) ABMASER
HHERAR Z*HF%%T%T
BEHBRZAEEE  MEK
7R £% B 78 4R 2 B B A A P

Th g & ¥ (1n

:t =©

balance sheet date. EEZRBEE) -
2008 2007
—EENF —ET+F
United States United States
dollar Increase dollar Increase
strengthen (decrease) strengthen (decrease)
(weaken) in profit (weaken) in profit
EnHE 8 45 N ELHAE g M3 A0
(B218) O 2) (B218) ORA)
HK$°000 HK$'000
FERT FHT
Hong Kong dollar 37T 1% 18,793 1% 16,701
(1%) (18,793) (1%) (16,701)
Japanese Yen =NE] 5% 21,678 5% 6,536
(5%) (21,678) (5%) (6,536)
Euro BT 1% (13) 1% 87)
(1%) 13 (1%) 87
The sensitivity analysis has been determined assuming BRRE 94T T R E NS B R

that the change in foreign exchange rates had occurred
at the balance sheet date and had been applied to each
of the group entities’ exposure to currency risk for non-
derivative financial instruments in existence at that date,
and that all other variable remain constant.

"""" BEHNEERRLE  RECD
Bgﬁﬁmm%@ﬁﬁﬂ/ﬁugagﬂ
ERITE TR T ARTAE
2 E¥ER R - B B
SHERFITE -

—2BNEEH
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31. Financial instruments (continued)

b. Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)

(i) Currency risk (continued)
Sensitivity analysis (continued)
The stated changes represent the management’s
assessment of reasonably possible changes in foreign
exchange rate over the period until the next annual
balance sheet date. Results of the analysis as presented
in the above table represent an aggregation of the
effects on each of the group entities’ profit or loss

© measured in the respective functional currencies,
§ translated into Hong Kong Dollar at the exchange rate
g ruling at the balance sheet date for presentation
’% purposes. The analysis is performed on the same basis
§ for 2007.

<

92

In managements opinion, the sensitivity analysis is
unrepresentative of the currency risk as the year end
exposure does not reflect the exposure during the year.

The sensitivity analyses below show the exposure to
change in forward exchange rate on the derivative
financial instruments assets/liabilities. Sensitivity rate of
5% represents management’s assessment of the
reasonably possible change in forward exchange rate.

Truly International Holdings Limited

Increase (decrease) in profit for the year

. EBIT HR@

b.

EREAREEBERREE
(#)

miﬁﬂ/ﬁ%(é‘a)
(i) E%¥ER4
@@Eﬁﬁ%@

S AEREEHERET
—FEEE RS- HRNNE
EXRARE Rz EEEHN
e ERBTRZOWMER
E$EHR§%MR§%
RREKIHEBZEAMEYE
Zmﬁ'ﬂHM%ZEL%
ZEXRME S TEZ S A
& ROMIIRBE_FFT
TFRR 2 BT

EEERA ARFEZR
BARERBREMEFE 2R
B BRESTHEERR
TRERKRIE -

AT SEE DT ERITE S
ﬂIEQF/QELﬁﬁﬁ
BEHEB o HEER%
REERBEEHERTL
A B B 2 SR -

FEEBFIEM ORD)

At 31 December

Rt+t=—A=+-—8
2008 2007
—EEBNF —ETF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHT
— as a result of increase — EHIfE R Tt
in forward exchange rate (298) 747
— as a result of decrease — EHAE R T
in forward exchange rate 298 (747)

In managements opinion, the sensitivity analysis is
unrepresentative of the other price risk as the year end
exposure does not reflect the exposure during the year.

EEERA ARFREZA
BARERBREBAFE 2R
B SRR DT HE A (ER
ke T AR
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31.

Financial instruments (continued)

b.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)
Market risk (continued)

(ii)

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk due
to the fluctuation of the prevailing market interest rate
on bank balances, interest rate swaps and variable-rate
bank and other borrowings (see notes 24 and 27 for
details). The Group is also exposed to fair value interest
rate risk in relation to fixed-rate loans receivable. The
management monitors the interest rate exposure and
manages it by entering into certain interest rate swaps
contracts.

The Group's exposures to interest rates on financial
assets and financial liabilities are detailed in the liquidity
risk management section of this note. The Group’s cash
flow interest rate risk is mainly concentrated on the
fluctuation of HIBOR and LIBOR arising from the Group’s
Hong Kong dollar denominated borrowings and interest
rate swaps.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined
based on the exposure to interest rates for variable-rate
bank borrowings and interest rate swaps and bank
balances. The analysis is prepared assuming the amount
of asset and liability outstanding at the balance sheet
date was existed for the whole year. A 100 basis point
(2007: 100% basis point) increase or decrease is used
when reporting interest rate risk internally to key
management personnel and represents management’s

assessment of the reasonably possible change in interest
rates.

T A
b.

(#)

TRAREEBBEREX

(%)

mS R (%)

(ii)

FI =R 2 b

REEBEAERERENE
B - R TR 8 IRITA
7 PR R% B RITIE
EUREMEE(GFEZ2AE
Bt 5E24 }27) 2 W17 35 A
T E) o NEREJAEETE L
BWEFREB 2 A FEFE
Bz BEREHMNEERE
MESRR - WiBEBERR] A T 7l
K BE N HEITER

rEERESRMEERSR
BEMAENERER 2 FE
HERAHMERBDESERE
B—fi- ARBEZRERE
MEREBREAEFAET
FIEzBERMEIRE - £
EEFREBRITRERE
RIRBRITRERE 2 E8 -

BRE D

IATBEEDITIIRIEBEZE
RITHRE - FIRBHRIRT
ﬁZﬂ%HAﬁ%EOi
AMBBREREE B R KE
BERAEEABZRER
EERGEMBRE - AEXE
EIEAB A REFERAR
B 0 BI100Z F (=2 Z
+4F 1008 T ) 2 38 A0SR
L RREEEBYHF KA AL
HIEAEEEEH 2T -
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31.

ENFT-A=+—HILEEE

Financial instruments (continued)

b.

Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)

(ii) Interest rate risk (continued)
Sensitivity analysis (continued)
If interest rates had been 100 basis points higher/lower
and all other variables were held constant, the Group’s
profit for the year ended 31 December 2008 would
decrease/increase by HK$14,271,000 (2007: decrease/
increase by HK$13,873,000). This is mainly attributable
to the Group's exposure to interest rates on its variable
rate bank balances, bank and other borrowings and
interest rate swaps.

The Group's sensitivity to interest rate has increased
during the current year mainly due to the addition in
variable rate bank and other borrowing and interest rate
swaps.

In managements opinion, the sensitivity analysis is
unrepresentative of the interest rate risk as the year end
exposure does not reflect the exposure during the year.

Credit risk

As at 31 December 2008, the Group’s maximum exposure to
credit risk which will cause a financial loss to the Group due to
failure to perform an obligation by the counterparties is arising
from the carrying amount of the respective recognised financial
assets as stated in the consolidated balance sheet.

Other than loans receivable as disclosed in note 22, the Group
does not have significant concentration of credit risk as trade
receivables consist of a large number of customers, spread

across diverse industries and geographical areas.

. EBIT HR@

b.

cREAMREEBERBER

(&)

TSR (&)

(i) REEEE)
BRED (&)
fHAIZ EF T BK10025 T
mMEATEEMEEHFTITE -
REBREBEZE-_TTNF+
A=+ BLEEZHEA
AllSg 4 /i*bu14271 00078 7T
(=== + w1 N
13,873,000%75) o i ) & &
FTEHRAEERELZER

T8 |RITEEREME
B DA R M) 3 1 B A PE ) R
B FrER o

RER  AEEHNEZH
BREBPTIEN  ERHNZE

BRITEEREMBEBEENAR
) 4= HAIE ANATER

EEERA ARFEZRA
B oK B IR BR B (B F B 2 [
@ BURE AT E R R E R
TERKRIE -

EERER
R=FRN\F+=A=+—H X
SEEYT I REBITEEEME
BAKBERHBERZEEAR
LR REHREBEAENGA L
EAEEMDZEEE -

BRP 22 TR B 2 R E SN B
RASBREEBESRRZTER
TRE 2 KERF Rt AKH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
REMBRRMEE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2008
HE_ZTN\E+-_A=+—HLEE

31. Financial instruments (continued)

b.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the
Group has delegated a team responsible for determination of
credit limits, credit approvals and other monitoring procedures
to ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue
debts. In addition, the Group reviews the recoverable amount
of each individual receivable at each balance sheet date to
ensure that adequate impairment losses are made for
irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the directors of the
Company consider that the Group’s credit risk is significantly
reduced.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit ratings assigned by
international credit-rating agencies.

With respect of credit risk arising from the loan receivables, the
management of the Company considers that the Group's
exposure to credit risk arising from default of these receivables
is limited as these parties are the PRC local government
authorities. The Group manages its credit risk by closing
monitoring and follow up action has been taken to recover the
overdue loan receivables. The Group does not expect to result
in any financial loss for the loan receivables.

3, €M IR

b.

cREREEEERBE
(%)

EEmE (&)
RBEERRBRERE AEEE
BEECZREREREERFE L
R EEMEREMERER - U
FERERERBRAE T B W @ a B (B R -
N AEBEREEEARHE
FRUGRIBZ AT E S8 - FEREL
BrW O e ERRABERE -
SRULTE - AABNEERR/AEE
ZEERBERREE -

nBEEZEERRAR  T2MA
REFHHRESEREEF %
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31. Financial instruments (continued)

b.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Ligquidity risk

Although the Group had net current liabilities at the balance
sheet date, the Group monitors its current and expected
liquidity requirements regularly and ensuring sufficient liquid
cash and adequate committed lines of funding from reputable
financial institutions to meet the Group’s liquidity requirements
in the short and long term.

The Group relies on bank borrowings as a significant source of
liquidity. As at 31 December 2008, the Group has available
banking facilities of approximately HK$903,242,000 (2007:
HK$1,223,984,000). Details of bank and other borrowings are
set out in note 27.

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by the management to finance the Group’s
operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash
flows. The management monitors the utilisation of bank
borrowings and ensures compliance with loan covenants.

The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual
maturity for its financial liabilities. For non-derivative financial
liabilities, the table has been drawn up based on the
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on the
earliest date on which the Group can be required to pay. The

table includes both interest and principal cash flow.

3, €M T R

b.

cREREEEERBE
(%)

MEEL AR
BEAEENEERBRERDERE
HE EARBEEHEREERR
BHRBHESH R URREAT
RZRBECREBEBEEZS
BB RAEERE  LWREA
SENERLRERRBESFER -

AEBFRRITEEERARDES
ZEBREFE -R-_ZTZTENE+_A
=+—R8  AEEAHAZIRITE
B FE #) /9032420008 T (= =
T4 1,223,984,0008 7T ) ° $R1T
BEREMEEZFBERAME
27

REBERBDESRRE  ~EEHE
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31. Financial instruments (continued) 3. €T A (s
q q q q q =, e
b. Financial risk management objectives and b. THEKREEBEFEREX
policies (continued) (%)
Liquidity risk (continued) HEBELRER (&)
For derivative instruments settle on a net basis, undiscounted RFEELEZTETAURINER
net cash outflows are presented. SRMEFEET -
Weighted
average Total Carrying
effective 0to3 4-6 7-12 1-2 2-3 3-5 undiscounted amount at
interest rate months months months year years years cash flows ~ 31/12/2008
®
—EINF
AR +=A
mE¥H £33 LS £z -z MmE S& ReRE Er=E
| ¥ikS =R ~ER =R mE =F HE Fet} ZEREE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 e
% TET TET FET TET TET TET FAT ThER ﬁ
2008 —2ENE =
iy
i
Non-derivative instruments ~ #{74 T & I
Trade and other payables ERERER
H{t A — 909472 - - - - - 909,472 909,472 97
Variable interest rate bank FERITEER i
and other borrowings Hinfd & 3.61 2,075,624 12,814 22,671 42,629 41,708 20,054 2,215,500 2,113,145 &4
m
2,985,096 12,814 22,671 42,629 41,708 20,054 3,124,972 3,022,617 i
2
Derivative instruments fI£TR i
— net settlement —REBELE m
Foreign exchange BRHINESH N
forward contracts
— outflow — i 1,043 — — — — — 1,043 1,043
Interest rate swap FlEEH
— net cash outflows — REeRitFE 1,005 1,005 2,01 4,022 2,01 — 10,054 7,688
2,048 1,005 2,011 4,022 2,011 — 11,097 8,731
2007 ZE2RLE
Non-derivative instruments ~ JEfT4£TE
Trade and other payables EREER
Hit A 1,334,781 — — — — — 1,334,781 1,334,781
Variable interest rate bank and ~ jZBHTEER
other borrowings Hife & 65 394408 89513 253580 419222 232230 93,440 1482393 1,387,309
1,729,189 89,513 253,580 419,222 232,230 93,440 2,817,174 2,722,090
Derivative instruments TR
— net settlement —REERAE
Foreign exchange forward BRHINESH
contracts

— outflow — i 3,799 3172 5103 = = = 12,074 12,074
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31. Financial instruments (continued) 3. R T B (»)
c. Fairvalue ¢ 2A¥E
The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities cRMEERSRABE(TERENTE
(excluding derivative financial instrument) are determined in ERTR) ZRAFEDNBELRE
accordance with generally accepted pricing models based on X2 EBEAERTRRERESD
discounted cash flow analysis using prices or rates from MEE - TIRRLSIRESTAAB A
observable current market transactions as input. BIRZERNMISR 5B EE
o o

The fair value of derivative financial instruments is estimated MTESRMTIAZATENZERT
using discounted cash flow analysis with reference to market BRER 2 RISRBRIEZEER 2 M5
rate of foreign currency and/or interest rate at the balance BERE SFE KAFERSR

2 sheet date for remaining duration of the outstanding contracts. EMfhEr -

o

[\l

é The directors consider that the carrying amount of financial EERBEREHEKNAINNGE I

’% assets and financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the HEzeMmEERGHABZERR

2 consolidated financial statements approximate to their fair BEEQNTEES -

a values.
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32. Additional interest in subsidiary 32 RMERE 2 HiB R

During the year, the Group further acquired 44% of the issued share F AN K&K E E — F K BTruly
capital of Truly Semiconductors (Korea) Ltd. for consideration of Semiconductors (Korea) Ltd. Z 44% B 3517 i&
HK$497,000. A+ R (B /497,000 T °
This acquisition has been accounted for using the purchase method. ZWBTRABRBEAR  BEXWEES
There was no goodwill arising as a result of the acquisition. EE
The carrying amount and fair value of net assets acquired in the ZRXGREZFEEZREBERAT
transaction are as follows: BT :
HK$'000
FAT
Net assets acquired: g 2 FEE - B
h&_
A
Property, plant and equipment L =N 13 m
Inventories FE 254 'ﬁl“
Trade and other receivables JE U B 7B e L A R W R IR 839 99
Bank balances and cash RITREFERE® 173
Trade and other payable JE A< BR T8 Ko HL At JRE A5 FRIE (443) E
mX
Net assets acquired Fri i < F & E 936 i
Less: Minority interest W DR R R 48)
e
888 «
Total consideration satisfied by: BRENUTIFAZM
Interest in an associate REE N E 2= 391
Cash BHe 497
888
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition: UWRBEA 7 IR &R L F5 ¢
Cash consideration paid EMRENRE (497)
Bank balances and cash acquired PR 2 RITHEF KRB ® 173
(324)
The subsidiary acquired during the year did not have any material FRMBEZMBART MU RER 2

impact on the Group’s results for the year. NFEEEBEXERATE -
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33. Operating lease commitments 33, MEMARIE
The Group as lessee rEBEREAEA
At the balance sheet date, the Group had commitments for future REER  AEBREBESITREELEHE
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases IR T 51 BABR B R 2 R 2R S AR A 49 7 5%
which fall due as follows: AN
2008 2007
—EENF —ETLF
HK$'000 HK$'000
T F&T
Within one year —F R 4,699 5,581
In the second to third years F_FEE=F
g inclusive (BIEEEMSF) 888 4,541
[\l
IS 5,587 10,122
o
&
2 Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group for KEHNONREASEREETHAE
h certain of its office premises and other equipment. Leases are MERHEMEZEMENS 2HE - 91
100 negotiated for an average term of two years with fixed rentals. EHBAAME  WABEHES -
©
()
£ The Group as lessor rEBERHEEA
5 Property rental income earned during the year was HK$5,065,000 N4 BREL 2 W) 2 & WA 55,065,000
< (2007: HK$3,793,000). All of the Group’s investment properties are BIL(ZZFEZT L4 379300078 7T) ° A
= held for rental purposes. SEE2HBREMFEHFERERS -
C
i<l
% At the balance sheet date, the Group had contracted with tenants for REEER  AEBEH N RRKER
£ the following future minimum lease payments: W FEBRPETL AL
>
2
2008 2007
—EENF —ETLF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FiExT FH&T
Within one year —F QR 1,818 1,287
In the second to fifth year inclusive E_FEERF
(BHEERWE) 3,550 4,021

5,368 5,308
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34. Capital commitments

34. BEAXRKIE

2008 2007
—EENF e
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Capital expenditure contracted for RBERE MRED L
but not provided in the consolidated BARESZE M BRETF
financial statements in respect of BEZERTH
acquisition of plant and equipment 56,246 115,409
Capital expenditure authorised but not  #ti& B MR & & O R &
contracted for in respect of acquisition {BARFT4 2B A H
of plant and equipment 120,000 600,000

35. Share option schemes

Pursuant to resolutions passed at an extraordinary general meeting of
the Company on 22 December 2003, the Company has terminated a
share option scheme which was adopted on 22 May 2001 (the “Old
Scheme”) and adopted a new share option scheme (the “New
Scheme”).

(i)

Old scheme

The purpose of the Old Scheme is to motivate employees of
the Group and to allow them to participate in the growth of
the Company. The maximum number of shares in respect of
which options may be granted under the Old Scheme is not
permitted to exceed 10% of the share capital of the Company
in issue from time to time. The maximum number of shares in
respect of which options may be granted to any individual is
not permitted to exceed 25% of the aggregate number of
shares for the time being issued and issuable under the Old
Scheme. Any participants who accepts an offer of the grant of
an option in accordance with the terms of the Old Scheme
shall pay to the Company HK$1.00 by way of consideration for
the grant thereof within a period of 30 days from the date on
which an option is offered to the participant.

At 31 December 2008, the number of shares in respect of
which options had been granted previously and remained
outstanding under the Old Scheme was 405,000 (2007:
540,000), representing approximately 0.1% (2007: 0.1%) of
total issued share capital of the Company. The options are
exercisable at any time until 21 May 2011.

35.

BT

BREARBAR_ZE=F+_A-+=
BRITZBRERFIAGBRBIRER
ARRAERIEN-ZZEZ-—FRAA-+=
AR BT 8 ([E5E)) - UK
IR A AT &) ([ &t 8l ))

(i) =EsrE
Effs A AEEZEE X
BRESEARRZER - REE
BT FRE CBRERS K2
BB HRTFEEAREN
B EBITIRAE10% © A & T (21
BRI A £ 2 BB R HE P % B 2 B4R
#E B TFBAERREBES
BB BT RA BT M AEN
25% ° (AR B AT &R R ZE AT
ERBRE 2 2EERANBRER
FT2EEEHEFOAARUKE
FARARRZ1.00#TT

R-—ZBZENE+-_A=+—8"
ESBETRBAESEREEARE
TEBREMSPRZBRMHDEE B
405,000 % ( = & & £ 4F : 540,000
B EARRRIEBETRAEE
H01%(ZZEZTEF:01%) - B
RiETR—_FE——FRA=+—H
Al 2 AF o] B 7T 455 o

)

—2BNEEH

MEBRERDE

=

f
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. -
35. Share option schemes (continued) 35. BRAEE (»)
(i) Old scheme (continued) () Bt
The following tables disclose details of the Company’s share TEREEREE(BREESE) AFHAR
options held by the employees (including directors) and NRIEREZFERFAZEER
movements in such holdings during the year: 2 EBBIBER
2008 —EENEFE
Number of options
BREZE
Exercised Exercised
Exercise Outstanding during Outstanding during Outstanding
Date of grant Exercisable period price at 1.1.2007 the year at 31.12.2007 the year at31.12.2008
§ i IS
v ” = —22)0f
% —BBtE +=A +=A
< -B-8 =+-A =+-8
g BHBEH THBE THEE 8 RAT FRITE o RATEE FRTHE 5 RATHE
g HK$
102 o
= Directors:
£ s
£
& 16 July 2001 17.7.2001 10 21.5.2011 21% 2700000 (2300,000) 400000 — 400,000
- SRP-FLAtAR —RP-FLAHLAS
£ —Z2——%HA=+—H
=
C
'% Employees:
& ES :
()
£
= 16 July 2001 17.7.2001 10 21.5.2011 21% 1263000 (1,123000) 140,000 (135,000) 5,000
= SET-FLA+AR CET-FLAHLAZ
—Z——FHAZ+—H
3963000 (3423000) 540,000 (135,000) 405,000
The average closing price of the Company’s share immediately RRABBRMH N EEEREITE R
before the date(s) on which the options were exercised and at ZRRTEZBZFEHRTER

dates of exercised is HK$6.88 (2007: HK$7.39). 6888 (ZTT L4 7398 7T) ©




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
REMBRRMEE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2008
HE_ZTN\E+-_A=+—HLEE

35 BRRESTE 2
¥atEl

35. Share option schemes (continued)

(i) New scheme (i)

The Company’s New Scheme was adopted for the primary
purpose of providing incentives to eligible persons or rewarding
for their contribution or potential contribution to the Group
and will expire on 21 December 2013. Under the New Scheme,
the Board of Directors of the Company may grant options to
eligible persons, including (i) any director or proposed director,
full-time employee or proposed employee of any member of
the Group or controlling shareholder or any company
controlled by a controlling shareholder; (i) any holder of any
securities issued by any member of the Group or any
controlling shareholder or any company controlled by a
controlling shareholder; and (iii) any business or joint venture

ARAZFAEEZRBEAER
ATHRBRELEAEE 2 TR
BEEBMER IR _F—=
F+ZAZ-+t—BEWm - REHT
g ARREFEURHBERET
BEBAL  BROANEEEMK
BT - PR BCR SRR R
ZERMRABZERNEEHEHR

% 2RESIERESR  (IFFE
B{EFKERR] - R R
IR IR ] 2 (R fa] 1A B BT 2 (R fal F
HFZEARBA - KA KB A

partner, contractor, agent or representative of any supplier of BB AT~ ERERR SRR AR R = i
goods or services to or any customer or distributor of goods or flz A AB 2 EMEBRE LR 5
services of any member of the Group or any controlling E&en - RER - EMEmsL EZ
shareholder or a company controlled by a controlling fREHERREK EAEF - BE® E
shareholder. YRS 5 S o 103
T
The total number of shares in respect of which options may be RAERRNTRREEAEZIBR é
granted under the New Scheme and the Old Scheme is not T R E B R ER BT TR E éﬁ
permitted to exceed 10% of the shares of the Company in ZEREMS R ZRNDBE - TE

issue at any point in time, without prior approval from the
Company’s shareholders. The number of shares in respect of
which options may be granted to any individual in any one year
is not permitted to exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in
issue at any point in time, without prior approval from the
Company'’s shareholders. Options granted to substantial
shareholders or independent non-executive directors in excess
of 0.1% of the Company’s share capital and with a value in
excess of HK$5 million must be approved in advance by the
Company’s shareholders.

Options granted must be accepted within 21 days from the
date of option offer, upon payment of HK$1.00 per option.
Options may be exercised at any time from the date of grant of
the share option to the 10th anniversary of the date of grant.
The exercise price is determined by the directors of the
Company, and will not be less than the highest of (i) the closing
price of the Company’s shares on the date of grant, (ii) the
average closing price of the shares for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the nominal
value of the Company'’s share.

FRIBA D B R 2 B BT
10% ° RAEAR DRI REE Lt
ZERT + BNER—F A [ ] R
RIATAI FEEZERERMSRZ
ROEE « TEBBERRBERE
MERTRGBZ1% - MEBRE
LB FEMITES R L BBA DA
A% 450.1% J% {& & it 185,000,000 % 7T
2B N AR RSN AR REL
o

RHZBRESANBREZEE
M2 BRI N &0 BARE
1008 T2 77 &M - BAERA R
RHBRERMEFEREBHT
BB ABERFTE - TTERERA
NAEFRET BB TORUATHR
BE OARFABRMREHAHZ
WTE - () B B HA
REZERZFHRHE - i)
REEMZEE -

=

f
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35. Share option schemes (continued) 35. BRAEE (»)
(i) New scheme (continued) (i) Frat&E e
At 31 December 2008, the number of shares in respect of RZZEZNFE+=ZA=+—8H"
which options had been granted previously and remained BEFFENBEEELREH
outstanding under the New Scheme was 56,475,000 (2007: RITEBREM P R 2RO E
56,475,000), representing approximately 11.9% (2007: B A56475000 fx ( Z 2T + F ¢
11.9%) of total issued share capital of the Company. The 56,4750000% ) - 1 AR BB #TR
options are exercisable at any time until 21 December 2013. RBH2ZHNMNI%(ZETLF:

119%) c BREAIR_-_ZT—=F
+ = A=+ — BRI 2 EERARTT

£ o
2 The following table discloses details of the Company’s share TREERE(BEESE) AFHAR
§ options held by the employees (including directors): NG g = d
g
& Number of options
E AR A
e
Z Exercised Outstanding at
Exercise  Outstanding during  31.12.2007 and
104 Date of grant Exercisable period price at 1.1.2007 the year 31.12.2008
ki R-ZZLHF
= t+=A=+—8
3 R-ETLEHF R-—ZENF+
o) -A—A —A=+-8
£ #HEBH TREHE THEE HARITE  FRTE i RATE
s HKS
= BT
C
2 Directors:
5 S
g
i 26 February 2004 27.2.2004 10 21.12.2013 116 17,600,000 (250,000) 17,350,000
S “ETWF_RA=+RE ZETEF-_A=-+tHZE
- —ET—=%+-A=+—H
15 June 2006 16.6.2006 t0 21.12.2013 9.58 9,000,000 — 9,000,000
ZETRFAA+AB ZTETERFAATRBE
—T—=Ff+=-A=+—H
26,600,000 (250,000) 26,350,000
Employees:
B’E :
26 February 2004 27.2.2004 10 21.12.2013 11.6 26,400,000 (775,000) 25,625,000
“ZTTWF_A=+A ZZTTWF-_A=-+tRHZE
—E—=%+ZA=+—H
15 June 2006 16.6.2006 t0 21.12.2013 9.58 4,500,000 — 4,500,000
—ETRFARA+AHB —ZEERFAATREE
—ZE—=f+-A=-+—H
30,900,000 (775,000) 30,125,000
57,500,000 (1,025,000) 56,475,000
During the year ended 31 December 2007, the average closing HE_ZTLF+_HA=+—Hit
price of the Company’s share immediately before the date(s) on FE - AABRMHNEEBRET
which the options were exercised and at dates of exercise is F R A RITE 2 B 2 FHk

HK$11.55. BA1SET -
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36.

37.

38.

Retirement benefits schemes

All the staff in Hong Kong of the Group are required to join the
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme. The Group is required to
contribute 5%, while the employees are required to contribute 5% of
their salaries to the scheme to the extent of HK$1,000 for each
employee.

According to the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC, the PRC
subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain percentage of the
salaries of their employees to the state-managed retirement benefit
scheme. The only obligation of the Group with respect to the
retirement benefit scheme is to make the required contributions
under the scheme.

Government grants

At the balance sheet date and included in trade and other payable,
the Group has an unconditional government grants of
HK$12,453,000 (2007: HK$9,353,000) towards the scientific research
development. The amount has been treated as deferred income and
included in other income and transferred to income over the useful
lives of the relevant property, plant & equipment and relevant
expenditure incurred. This policy has resulted in a credit to income in
the current year of HK$1,421,000 (2007: HK$5,456,000).

Related party transactions

The remuneration of directors and other members of key
management during the year were as follows:

36.

37.

38.

RIREFEE
AEEZ2BESEEIHBS MBI

N

=
S
RFEEEE c ARBAFELS%ER - M
& B IR/ [ R a1 81 1E i H % 5% 2
o BREBZHEAZZ H1,0008TT

S

REFEBRZERRD - TEMER
AZA (R B R B I H) R IR AR AU AT B4R AR
EREREFMETEOLLZHR - K
SERERARBANFEMAZREEERRA
ZETBIVEH AR -

B 16 BY

REZB LTI AL S K E A B K8 -
AEBESHENTARRE 2 EKHRK
T # B12,453000 B m ( Z T T £ F -
9,353,000/ 7T ) ° BB 1R BIETE R
AR E AW AT - BRI -
BEREEBARMEEZBBERZE
BHRE AR - WERRERAFEK
AZEREAE1421008T( T+
£ 1 545600078 7C) °

BEAELXRS

AEREENHEMIB2EEEKE Z2H
BT

2008 2007

—EENF —EEAF

HK$'000 HK$'000

THExT FHET

Short-term benefits EHEA 18,259 18,921
Post-employment benefits BEBR 1218 A 132 120
18,391 19,041

The remuneration of directors and key executives are determined by
the remuneration committee having regard to the performance of
individuals and market trends.

EERIETRABZHMAFMNE
BE2EMAZRARTEBLIRETE -

FIERERA T é BB \EER

=

f
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39. Particulars of principal subsidiaries of the 39. AR A EXEME X AE R

Company

Place of
incorporation
or registration/

Nominal value of
issued and fully
paid ordinary
share capital/

Proportion ownership

Name of subsidiary operation registered capital interest held by the Company Principal activities
ERTRER
MR EERRAE AARBEZ
MEBD = RB iR i HEEMmER FrERERERL G FEXEK
2008 2007
—BENF —ETLF
Truly Electronics Manufacturing Limited  Hong Kong HK$1,000,010 100% 100% Trading of electronic
FEHEFERAA BB 1,000,010 7T calculators
BEFHEEE S
- Truly Electrical Products Company Hong Kong HK$200 100% 100% Trading of motor
S Limited BB 2008 7T EITE 5
S ENEEERAT
08; Truly Industrial Limited Hong Kong HK$872,894 100% 100% Trading of electronic
o ERNIERERQA ) 872,894 7T components
g BFLHES
j=
& Truly Instrument Limited Hong Kong HK$100 100% 100% Trading of electric tooth
EFEBRARA R BE 1007 7T brush
106 BHFRE S
5 Truly Semiconductors (Korea) Ltd South Korea Korean won 94% — (note)  Trading of electronic
= (formerly known as Truly FA§E 250,000,000 — (HiiZ) consumer products
= Instrument Korea Company Limited) 250,000,000%% BEFHEERED
é Truly Semiconductors (Korea) Ltd
5 (AIFETruly Instrument Korea
_,_g Company Limited )
'_C“ Truly Semiconductors Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000 100% 100% Trading of LCD products
2 ERFERER AR ) 1,000 7T BREBETRSERES
©
§ Truly (USA) Inc. United States of US$20,00_0 100% 100% Marketing of electronic
= America 20,0003 7T calculators
> 2R BT EME
=}
- EMEFAR AT PRC US$38,964,115 100% 100%  Manufacture of
A B 38,964,153 7T electronic calculators
BUEE TR EH
ERIEERERQA PRC US$498,300,000 100% 100%  Manufacture of LCD
S 498,300,0003 7T products
HERBEETREER
EM@ESECLR) BR AR PRC US$1,000,000 100% 100%  Manufacture of electric
R 1,000,000 7© toothbrush
SEEH TR
ERAECLR) BRQA]* PRC US$1,168,137 100% 100%  Inactive
t 1,168,137% T i
ERIZCLRE)BRAR* PRC HK$2,000,000 100% 100% Inactive
A 2,000,000/ 7T
EMERCOLR) BRAR> PRC US$35,750,000 100% 100% Inactive
eellEil 35,750,0003% 7¢
& wholly foreign owned enterprise @ IINEHE B F
Note: During the year, the Group acquired additional equity interest of 44% of Bz 7 - NEEYEE Truly Semiconductors

Truly Semiconductors (Korea) Ltd. Accordingly, the associate became the

(Korea) Ltd. 44% 2 BB9ME A 1w AUt -

subsidiary of the Group. BT BN EE S W B AT o
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39. Particulars of principal subsidiaries of the
Company (continued)

Except for Truly Electronics Manufacturing Limited and Truly (USA)
Inc., all subsidiaries are indirectly held by the Company.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group which, in the
opinion of directors, principally affected the results or assets of the
Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of
the directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding at 31
December 2008 or at any time during the year.

39.

ARAREENELQREFR
(#)

BEFETHR AR KETruly (USA) Inc.oh
ENBRARYBEARGIMERS -

NEZREINEERREARERE
REERKEIBEXEZMBRA - 2
HEMHMBRBAZHE  EFERRFE
EERITK -

R-ZEENF+_A=+—H=FRAE
AR SHBARHETMAKEREZ
BERES -

o
~

TEN\FER

MEBRERDE

il

=

f




» Financial Summary

AR E

Results &

Year ended 31 December
BE+-A=1t—RHLEE
2004 2005 2006 2007 2008
—TENE —ZTTHF —ZTEX —ETLFE —ZEZTN\HF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT FET FHET FExT

Revenue A 3,406,992 4,574,079 4,523,826 6,493,394 5,669,274
Cost of sales 4 E KA (2,615969)  (3487,719)  (3623940)  (5387,613)  (4,973,300)
Gross profit EF 791,023 1,086,360 899,836 1,105,781 695,974
Other income H bl A 16,061 27438 79,125 85,669 89,397
Administrative expenses 1T E R (130,229) (164,459) (178,062) (168,753) (238,876)
Distribution and DM IEE & A
§ selling expenses (54,839) (73,592) (113,666) (139,108) (140,422)
N Impairment losses B A B — (14,177) — — —
S Share of results of B —REEE QR
< an associate E 13 (382) (334) (445) —
5 Finance costs MR M (14,201) (19,683) (35,766) (57,821) (67,015)
= Profit before tax B 56 A e 607,928 841,505 651,183 825,323 339,058
108 Income tax expense R8s it (81,427) (139,457) (119,137) (123,294) (77,923)
k5 Profit for the year ENCHE T 526,501 702,048 532,046 702,029 261,135
€
= Attributable to: AR AL FE(Y :
2 Equity holders of RABRRER
2 the Company 526,501 702,048 532,046 702,029 261,121
= Minority interest L BT RS = = = = 14
C
% 526,501 702,048 532,046 702,029 261,135
[=
- . oo, S ==
z Assets and liabilities EEREE
=

At 31 December

R+t=-—H=+—H
2004 2005 2006 2007 2008
—TENE —_FTERFE —_FTNF _FTLHF —TENF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET FHET FHET FHET

Total assets BEETE 2,408,947 3,428,180 4,094,541 5,902,044 6,560,209
Total liabilities BEBERE (1,001,008)  (1,490,135)  (1,728539)  (2,869,713)  (3,314,104)
Equity attributable to equity Zx/ &) P& 5 15 A% 4

holders of the Company 1,407,939 1,938,045 2,366,002 3,032,331 3,246,105
Minority interest DB R = = = — (62)

1,407,939 1,938,045 2,366,002 3,032,331 3,246,043
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